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DISTRICT OF SOOKE COAT OF ARMS

Armorial Bearings of the District of Sooke
granted by the Chief Herald of Canada
on September 16, 2002
Arms (Shield)
The red and gold of the arms are the colours of Royal Spain and hence refer to the first European contact. Gold also symbolizes the wealth derived from the historically important industries
of fishing and forestry which are represented by salmon and axes, and refers to the Leech River
gold rush. The diagonal design of the arms echoes the basic division of the flag of Scotland and
represents the Scottish who were the first European settlers in Sooke.
Crest (above the shield)
The canoe honours the people of the T’Sou-ke First Nation and their traditional lifeways. The
sun refers to the sunset over the ocean as well as the sun in the flag of British Columbia. The
camas was an important plant to the First Nation and the broom refers to Captain Grant, the
first European settler.
Motto
At the base of the design, “RAINFOREST MEETING SEA” is a shortened version of “Where the
Rainforest meets the Sea.”
Compartment and Supporters
The compartment is a visual representation of the theme “Where the Rainforest Meets the
Sea.” The cougar is an important native animal and its collar refers to Sooke being a Canadian
municipality in British Columbia. The pendent crosses are of England and Scotland, referring to
British settlers. The deer is also an important native animal, while the fleur-de-lis refers to
French Canadian settlers. The animals stand and the shield rests on a mound set with Douglas
Firs rising above the sea.
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District of Sooke Boundary Map

The District of Sooke is located on the southern point of Vancouver Island, on Canada’s rugged west
coast. Sooke is situated on the north shore of the Sooke Harbour and Basin and is surrounded to the
north, west and south by the Juan de Fuca Electoral Area and to the east by the District of Metchosin.
Sooke’s political boundary includes a portion of the Sooke Harbour & Basin even though Sooke only
encompasses approximately half of the directly adjacent shore. East Sooke is the unincorporated area to the south of Sooke, which encompasses the remaining uplands of the basin and separates
Sooke Basin from the Juan de Fuca Strait. Whiffin Spit is a long spit of land that extends out into the
mouth of the Sooke Harbour and helps protect the inner basin leaving a narrow channel of tide rips
between its tip and the opposite shore. The inlet is edged with both gravel and sand beaches. The
land varies from steep and gradually sloped, wooded hillsides, to the Sooke Hills further north. The
community of Sooke is overlooking the Juan de Fuca Strait and Olympic Mountains range and encompasses approximately 5,800 hectares of land, which can be classified as semi-rural. The District of
Sooke is located within the Capital Regional District, approximately 45 kilometres from Greater Victoria
along scenic Highway 14, also known as the Pacific Marine Circle Route, and is 20 kilometres directly
west of Langford. The T’Sou-ke Nation is located along the eastern shores of the Sooke River, Sooke
Basin, as well as the lands along the Strait of Juan de Fuca.
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PRESENTED BY DISTRICT OF SOOKE COUNCIL, June 8, 2015 in accordance with section 99 of the Community Charter.
An electronic version (PDF) of this report is available on the District of Sooke website: www.sooke.ca
For more information, please contact the District of Sooke:
2205 Otter Point Road
Sooke, B.C. V9Z 1J2
Telephone—250-642-3807
Email: info@sooke.ca
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Message from the Mayor
On behalf of the District of Sooke, Council and Staff, it is my pleasure to introduce the 2015 Annual Report.

Reflecting on 2014 and looking ahead to 2015 —
First and foremost, I would like to commend the efforts of Council, Staff and
community volunteers for their combined efforts in moving Sooke forward as we
near the half-way point of 2015.

For several years now we have worked towards the creation of a vibrant town
centre and over the next several months this vision will evolve into reality. Evidence of this is already underway at the new Royal Bank site, and the town centre improvements which will include sidewalks, the long-awaited roundabout,
intersection improvements at Church and Sooke Road and at Murray/Otter Point
and Sooke Road.
Thanks to the dynamic work of Council and Staff we have successfully received
a cycling grant to provide a safe connection to the Galloping Goose from the
Sooke River Road park and ride. We are also very grateful to Director Mike
Hicks for taking the lead on a grant through SEAPARC for an all-weather field
at Fred Milne Park.
One of the pillars of the District of Sooke Strategic Plan is Fiscal Sustainability.
The District will work towards long-term financial sustainability and it will prepare
for the future by ensuring adequate contributions are made towards
required long-term capital infrastructure needs while living within our
CORPORATE ROADMAP
means. Through the excellent work of Council and Staff, we have
completed our 2015 – 2019 Five Year Financial Plan and achieved a
0% tax impact for municipal taxes in 2015. This has been achieved in
Official Community Plan
the current year while setting aside $565,808 into reserves for future
use.
2015 Strategic Plan

Five Year Financial Plan
Transportation Master Plan
Parks & Trails Master Plan
Town Centre Plan
Agricultural Plan
Liquid Waste Management
Plans (Sanitary and Rainwater)
Sustainable Development
Strategy
District of Sooke

It is important that taxpayers understand their property tax notice in
relation to the above mentioned 0% tax impact. The municipal portion
of your tax bill represents approximately 40% of the total that you will
be paying. The other 60% of this bill is collected by the District of
Sooke and remitted to other taxing authorities, Capital Regional District, Hospital, School, BC Assessment, BC Transit, Library and Municipal Finance Authority.
With your encouragement and support I’m confident that council and
staff will continue to find creative ways to fulfill the goals and vision we
all share in making Sooke an attractive place to call home.
With kind regards,
2015 Annual Report
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Community Overview

Located on Vancouver Island, the District of Sooke is a short 40-minute drive from downtown
Victoria, the capital city of British Columbia. The community's approximately 10,000 residents
enjoy a relaxed, casual lifestyle in a rural setting that also affords many of the amenities of city
life.
Sooke's once resource-dependent economy has shifted focus to include many home-based
businesses, a commercial core, and a bustling tourism sector which annually entertains thousands of visitors from throughout the world. Sooke is the gateway to numerous ecotourism adventures as well as the West Coast Trail, Juan de Fuca Marine Trail, and Galloping Goose Trail.
Sooke enjoys some of the mildest climate in western Canada, with warm and dry summer
months, and wet, mild winter months, allowing residents and visitors alike to enjoy many
amenities such as a Par 3 golf course, Whiffin Spit Park, Sooke Potholes Provincial Park, skateboard park, arena and aquatic centre, museum and visitor information centre, community gardens and much, much more.
Sooke supports a vibrant and varied arts community. Many talented artists and craftspeople
create beautiful works from both home-based studios and galleries in the commercial core. Musicians of every genre, from symphonic to choral to bluegrass, perform at a variety of events
throughout the year. They share the stage with an enthusiastic theatre community at many
venues — EMCS Community Theatre, Ed Macgregor outdoor “ȻÁṈEN” theater and local churches and parks.
The volunteer spirit pulls residents together for numerous special events like the Rotary Spring
Fair, Safe Halloween, Sooke Canada Day celebration, Sooke Fine Arts Show, Sooke
Philharmonic Orchestra “Fling”, Blue Grass Festival, and Sooke Fall Fair. But that volunteer
spirit doesn't end with special events. Hundreds of residents share their time and talents with
dozens of community groups offering something special to their fellow residents.
Visitors to our community have the opportunity to enjoy the beauty the Sooke region has to offer, one main reason so many are proud to call Sooke home.
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A view to the future (from the 2010 Official Community Plan
Looking forward twenty-five years from now….
The people of Sooke are proud of their community and its natural setting. Sooke’s historic ties
with the T’Sou-ke Nation are creating strong economic partnerships, social bonds, and development opportunities, which have strengthened the cultural integrity of both communities.
Sooke’s friendly people, diversity of culture, history, character, working class roots and small
town atmosphere make it very attractive for people to visit and call home. Sooke is a great
place for families, children, seniors, and others who appreciate a quiet, less complicated lifestyle with the amenities of a complete yet sustainable community.
Sooke has a vibrant, sustainable, well defined commercial core with pedestrian linkages, mixed
land uses, higher densities and an appealing Town Centre character and design. The Town
Centre has been linked to surrounding neighbourhoods through an integrated trail and pedestrian network. Sooke has also developed a number of sustainable, mixed use areas to complement the Town Centre and existing residential areas. The Town Centre is now the hub of vibrant pedestrian activity with many people living, working and shopping in the area. There are
many small shops and galleries clustered in quaint buildings within this urban environment,
which attract both visitors and new residents.
There is a strong sense of character within the Town Centre, with narrow streets, public gathering places and attractive landscaping. A sea-walk extends along the harbour waterfront of the
community, linking the mouth of the Sooke River to the Town Centre and Whiffin Spit Park, and
which has become a main attraction for residents and visitors. Sooke is a small town surrounded by rural agricultural lands, natural forests and water. The community is a safe, inviting
place to live, linked to surrounding communities by a variety of transportation modes.
The community creates shared sustainable economic development through a thriving economy.
The existence of a variety of housing types in conjunction with affordable housing has attracted
a wide variety of demographics and income levels. Tourism is an important economic driver
combined with a well established visual and performing arts scene. Marine and waterfront
businesses support tourism as well as a mix of commercial and appropriate industrial activities.
Innovations and flexibility in zoning has made Sooke a food security hub, created a friendly development environment, and which respects the rural cultural character and sense of place of
the community.
Visitors to our community have the opportunity to enjoy the beauty the Sooke region has to
offer, one main reason so many are proud to call Sooke home.
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2015 District of Sooke
Strategic Plan
Introduction to Corporate Planning
The corporate planning process helps to guide the District’s short term corporate decisionmaking, corporate work plan, and the five year financial plan implementation processes.
The goal of the 2015 Strategic Plan was to identify and document the priorities of the corporation for a four year period, and to lay the foundation and internal structures for the development of detailed longer-term work plans. The Strategic Plan developed guiding principles and a
commitment to providing the best possible local government for Sooke citizens and its business
community.

(L to R) Councillor Ebony Logins, Councillor Bev Berger, Councillor Rick Kasper,
Mayor Maja Tait, Councillor Kevin Peason, Councillor Brenda Parkinson, Councillor Kerrie Reay.
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2015
DISTRICT OF SOOKE STRATEGIC PLAN
“Connecting People and Places for
Economic Prosperity”

Council approved April 13, 2015
Workshop held February 13, 2015

District of Sooke
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE STRATEGIC PLAN
FISCAL SUSTAINABILITY - THE DISTRICT WILL WORK TOWARDS LONG-TERM FINANCIAL
SUSTAINABILITY. IT WILL PREPARE FOR THE FUTURE BY ENSURING ADEQUATE
CONTRIBUTIONS ARE MADE TOWARDS REQUIRED LONG-TERM CAPITAL
INFRASTRUCTURE NEEDS, WHILE LIVING WITHIN OUR MEANS.
•PROACTIVELY PLAN FOR REPLACEMENT OF OUR INFRASTRUCTURE
•DETERMINE LEVELS OF SERVICE AND PROPERLY FUND
•BUILD CAPACITY IN OUR COMMUNITY BY SUPPORTING INITIATIVES THAT SUPPORT
SUSTAINABILITY

EXCELLENCE IN MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE- THE DISTRICT WILL USE BEST
PRACTICES TO ENSURE EXCELLENCE IN MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE
•FOCUS ON GOOD GOVERNANCE
•ENHANCE OUR COMMUNICATION WITH OUR RESIDENTS
•ENSURE WE ARE PROPERLY STRUCTURED AND RESOURCED TO MEET THE
COMMUNITY'S NEEDS

COMMUNITY PLANNING- THE DISTRICT WILL WORK TOWARDS STREAMLINING
PLANNING PROCESSES TO ENCOURAGE INVESTMENT AND JOB GROWTH IN THE
COMMUNITY.
•OUR OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PLAN IS CRITICAL TO OUR COMMUNITY VISION AND WE
WILL ENSURE IT STAYS CURRENT
•ENSURE OUR BYLAWS REFLECT COMMUNITY NEEDS AND VALUES

ECONOMIC PROSPERITY - THE DISTRICT WILL WORK TOWARDS DEVELOPING
APPROPRIATE MECHANISMS TO FACILITATE AND PROMOTE LONG-TERM COMMUNITY
ECONOMIC PROSPERITY.
•PROACTIVELY PURSUE ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES
•FOCUS ON BEING CONSISTENT IN OUR DECISION MAKING
•ENSURE OUR CRITERIA ARE REFLECTIVE OF OUR COMMUNITY'S NEEDS
•IMPROVE OUR CUSTOMER SERVICE FOCUS

ENHANCING COMMUNITY LIVABILITY- THE DISTRICT WILL WORK TOWARDS MAKING
SOOKE A VIBRANT AND ACCESSIBLE COMMUNITY
•FOCUS ON MAKING THE TOWN CENTRE VIBRANT AND ACCESSIBLE
•IMPROVE OPPORTUNITIES FOR RESIDENTS TO GATHER AND CONNECT
•TAKE STEPS TO PROTECT SOOKE'S NATURAL BEAUTY

•
District of Sooke
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
STRATEGIC PLANNING SESSION 2015
Preparing to Plan Consultation with staff
prior to workshop

Reporting on the Plan Regular reporting to Board
on progress against
strategic plan

Pre Session Survey
Distributed to Council and
key staff

Measuring the Progress of
the Plan - Identify
measures to track
progress

The Planning Workshop Facilitated workshop
focused on issues

Building the Plan -Identify
key strategic priorities

Preparing to Plan
The Strategic Planning Process undertaken by Council was heavily invested in preparation –
Council members and key staff completed online surveys to identify the strengths, weaknesses,
opportunities and threats facing the organization. The feedback from these surveys was
shared with Council prior to commencing the session.
In addition, previous planning documents were reviewed and considered to build on the work
the organization has done in prior years and preparatory conference calls were held.

District of Sooke
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The Planning Workshop
The workshop was attended by Council as well as selected senior staff. The workshop focused
on the key issues facing the organization and the strategic priorities were chosen specifically to
take advantage of opportunities as well as to protect the organization against threats.
Building the Plan
The notes of the workshop were compiled by Paragon Strategic Services Ltd., and formed
the basis of the 2015 Strategic Plan. It was recognized that in the final year of the four
year term the focus would be shorter term with a more robust planning process being
undertaken after the next election.
Council has identified a significant number of initiatives that support the strategic priorities
identified and have attached timelines and measures to those activities in the 2015
Workplan.
Measuring Plan Progress
Progress measurements have been attached to the strategic priorities, including:
•
•
•
•
•

Identifying the resources required
Identifying achievable timelines for each action/goal
Identifying measures that show progress to goals
Prioritizing activities within the plan
Initiate tracking progress on a quarterly basis

Reporting on the Plan
Council will report on a quarterly basis to the community to ensure that progress to goals is
tracked.
Communicating the Plan
Council will hold a public information meeting to introduce the strategic plan to
the community.

District of Sooke
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2015 District of Sooke Strategic Plan
“Connecting People and Places for
Economic Prosperity”

2015 WORKPLAN
In order to ensure that the Strategic Plan is utilized by Council and Staff, the 2015 Workplan was
developed:
1. A detailed review of the Strategic Plan was done to ensure the Plan captured the intent of the
Council during the workshop;
2. Specific action items under each strategic priority have been assigned within the Workplan;
3. Measures and time frames have been assigned to these activities in order for Council and Staff
can ensure progress towards the strategic priorities;
4. Regular meetings will be scheduled to review the strategic priorities and workplan -- and to
identify any changes that need to be made;
5. Council will ensure the Strategic Priorities will drive regular decision making – if an initiative is
brought to Council there should be a review of the its alignment with the priorities selected by
Council;
6. Council will communicate the priorities to Staff and the Community.

MOVING FORWARD
Council and staff are committed to making a real difference in each of the strategic priority areas by
the end of the current four year term. The following Workplan tables address each of the priorities:
•
•
•

Providing an overview of the long term outcomes or results desired (some beyond the four
years)
Describing immediate actions and/or ongoing behaviours that will help deliver these outcomes
or results;
Listing specific projects or initiatives that will require significant investment of time and/or
financial resources (see Five Year Financial Plan)

District of Sooke
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Fiscal Responsibility
THE DISTRICT WILL WORK TOWARDS LONG-TERM FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY. IT WILL PREPARE
FOR THE FUTURE BY ENSURING ADEQUATE CONTRIBUTIONS ARE MADE TOWARDS REQUIRED
LONG-TERM CAPITAL INFRASTRUCTURE NEEDS, WHILE LIVING WITHIN OUR MEANS.
•
•
•

PROACTIVELY PLAN FOR REPLACEMENT OF OUR INFRASTRUCTURE
DETERMINE LEVELS OF SERVICE AND PROPERLY FUND
BUILD CAPACITY IN OUR COMMUNITY BY SUPPORTING INITIATIVES THAT SUPPORT SUSTAINABILITY
Actions

•

•

Objectives / Work Plan

Exercise discipline by focusing
on priorities and when
undertaking new services

Asset Management Plan

Regular consideration of
ongoing and related costs as
decisions are made and/or
projects approved.

Timing

Resources
Required

Ongoing

Finance
Engineering
GIS

2017

Committee
Finance

2015/2016

Fire

• Third party review of Fire Department equipment and resources
Police Service Level

2015/2016

Consultant

•

2015/2016

RCMP
Finance

•

Implementation and transfer of data to new software system

•

Parallel systems ready to operate for Financial Statements

•

Fire Apparatus Replacement Plan

Long Term Financial Plan
•

Affordable sustainability must take into account infrastructure
maintenance, safety services, operations as well as funding
community programs.

Fire Service Level
•

District of Sooke

The Province has recently released the British Columbia Fire Service
Minimum Training Standards Training Playbook. It is now incumbent
on all local governments to review the Playbook and formally adopt the
level of training and, therefore service, they wish to provide their
communities.

Explore the optimum level of security in the community.
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Review service contracts:
•

Ensure all contracts provide value for money

•

Review Fee for Service Agreements (e.g. Chamber, SRTA, SCA,
SRHS, CHI)

•

Evaluation of performance indictators

Explore opportunities to work with our neighbours on sewer
expansion:
•

Sewer service for T’Sou-Ke First Nation

2015/2016

All departments

Community Grant
Review Committee

Ongoing

Council

2015

Community Grant
Review Committee
Finance

2015

Contractor

Review Community Grant Policy:
•

Criteria for grant funding

•

Streamline procedure

• Support grants that improve civic pride and community improvement
Civic Building Maintenance:

•

District of Sooke

Prepare a building maintenance schedule.
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EXCELLENCE IN MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE
THE DISTRICT WILL USE BEST PRACTICES TO ENSURE EXCELLENCE IN MANAGEMENT AND
GOVERNANCE
•
•
•

FOCUS ON GOOD GOVERNANCE
ENHANCE OUR COMMUNICATION WITH OUR RESIDENTS
ENSURE WE ARE PROPERLY STRUCTURED AND RESOURCED TO MEET THE COMMUNITY'S NEEDS
Actions

•

Clearly identify objectives

•

Focus on performance and
measures

•

Continue to ensure our
Committees are well
designed to achieve
community objectives:
• When should they be used
(ie. for specific projects)
• Access expertise in the
community
• Address key community
interests

Objectives / Work Plan

Resources
Required

Community Engagement
•

Use of select/task force committees with specific outcomes

•

Develop internal and external communication strategy (Communication
Plan and policies)

•

Ongoing website improvement; explore other tools

•

Public mapping showing infrastructure and public space information

•

Digitally share information used for Open Houses or Public Information
meetings

•

Council resolution tracking

2015-2018

Council

Ongoing

Corporate
Services

2015/2016

Corporate
Services

• Continue public information meetings twice/year
Records management
•

Necessary conversion of antiquated files

• Long term impacts

•

Implementation of electronic records management

• Value community input in
the decisions we make

•

Upgrade electronic devices/tools to enhance service

•

Implement online application forms

District of Sooke

Timing
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•

Continue to ensure residents
have access to information
that affects them

Comprehensive staffing review
• Develop organization succession plan
•

Ensure adequate service level to respond to
applications/demand/request/queries

•

Enhance individual performance improvement program through existing
annual reviews

2015-2016

CAO

Develop corporate performance measures
•

Strategic Plan

•

Financial Plan

Ongoing

Council
CAO

2015

Municipal
Insurance Assoc.

Risk Management
•

Review policies to minimize liability.

All Departments

District of Sooke
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Community Planning
THE DISTRICT WILL WORK TOWARDS STREAMLINING PLANNING PROCESSES TO ENCOURAGE
INVESTMENT AND JOB GROWTH IN THE COMMUNITY.
•
•

OUR OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PLAN IS CRITICAL TO OUR COMMUNITY VISION AND WE WILL ENSURE IT STAYS
CURRENT
ENSURE OUR BYLAWS REFLECT COMMUNITY NEEDS AND VALUES
Actions

•

Continue to ensure
relevancy and correctness in
our Bylaws and Policies

District of Sooke

Objectives/Work Plan

Timing

Official Community Plan “Refresh” in accordance with the Local Government
Act (5 years)

2015

Ongoing review and amendment as required of Bylaws and Policies with priority
to regulatory bylaws such as:

2015/2016

•

Sign Regulation Bylaw

•

Animal Regulation and Impounding Bylaw

•

Development bylaws and policies

•

Traffic and Highway Regulation Bylaw

•

Building Regulation Bylaw

2015 Annual Report

Resources
Required
Planning

Corporate Services

Other
departments
as appropriate
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Economic Prosperity
THE DISTRICT WILL WORK TOWARDS DEVELOPING APPROPRIATE MECHANISMS TO FACILITATE
AND PROMOTE LONG-TERM COMMUNITY ECONOMIC PROSPERITY.
•
•
•
•

PROACTIVELY PURSUE ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES
FOCUS ON BEING CONSISTENT IN OUR DECISION MAKING
ENSURE OUR CRITERIA ARE REFLECTIVE OF OUR COMMUNITY'S NEEDS
IMPROVE OUR CUSTOMER SERVICE FOCUS

Actions

District of Sooke

Objectives / Work Plan

Timing

Resources
Required

Continue to support Hotel Tax application designated for destination marketing.

2015/2016

Finance

Review current economic development initiatives.

2015/2016

Council
CAO

2015 Annual Report

Page 19 of 116

Enhancing Community Livability
THE DISTRICT WILL WORK TOWARDS MAKING SOOKE A VIBRANT AND ACCESSIBLE COMMUNITY
•
•
•

THE DISTRICT WILL FOCUS ON MAKING THE TOWN CENTRE VIBRANT AND ACCESSIBLE
IMPROVE OPPORTUNITIES FOR RESIDENTS TO GATHER AND CONNECT
TAKE STEPS TO PROTECT SOOKE'S NATURAL BEAUTY

Actions
Town Centre Development –
•

Improvements for the safety
of the residents and visitors,
sidewalks, crosswalks ,
lighting

•

Consider development of
South Town Centre

•

We want our beautiful
waterfront accessible for
residents and visitors

•

Consider vulnerable
residents needs

Objectives / Work Plan

Timing**

Town Centre Development:
•

Move forward with approved projects:
a. Sooke Road/Brownsey Boulevard Roundabout
b. Explore options for development of Goodmere Road
c. Throup Road Connector from Phillips Road to Charters Road (Grant
Dependent)
d. Sooke Road sidewalks from Otter Point Road to Church Road

2015/2016

Resources
Required**
Engineering
Consultant

Community Gathering Spaces
•

•

Locate community gathering spaces in Town Centre and incorporate:
a. wayfinding signs
b. benches
c. public art
John Phillips Memorial Park and Sooke River Road Park Plans

2016

Planning
Engineering

2015/2016

Parks and
Trails Advisory
Committee

Town Centre Access and Servicing Plan

District of Sooke

•

Road access and connectivity

•

Parking

•

Servicing (sanitary sewer and drainage)

2017

Engineering
Planning

2015 Annual Report
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•

Waterfront Access
a. Explore and implement ways to improve waterfront access for
residents and visitors
b. Identify and maintain water access points and pocket parks
Murray Road improvements (including drainage works)
Investigate programs for Town Centre beautification:
a. Improving existing buildings
b. Link to Town Centre Design Guidelines
Community Facilities

Continue to support Vancouver Island Regional Library to construct
new library in Town Centre
Community Centre Facilities
•

Finalize plans for Community Facilities

Encourage community gardens

Environment

District of Sooke

2017

2015/2016

Engineering

All departments
Committee

Library
•

Consistency in bylaw
enforcement

2016

Ongoing

2015/2016

CAO
Sooke Community
Centre Advisory
Committee

Ongoing

Develop policy for bylaw enforcement
•

Business licences

•

Unsightly premises

•

Signs

•

Liquid Waste Management Plan requires bylaws and policies to be
established and certain actions implemented in accordance with Provincial
requirements.

•

Reduce illegal dumping.

2015 Annual Report
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Corporate
Services

2016/2017

Engineering
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Our trail network is a key
community asset.

District of Sooke

Enhance Community Public space profiles :
a. enhance connectivity
b. public safety and maintenance
c. park naming and appropriate signage
d. wayfinding signage
e. public space brochures
f. public awareness campaign

2015 Annual Report
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Committee
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2014 Municipal Services and
Operations Report

The following statements of departmental operations for 2014 are presented in
accordance with the Community Charter section 98 requirements.


Corporate Services



Financial Services

Message from the Director of Finance

2013 Permissive Property Tax Exemptions

Audited Financial Statements 2014



Development Services

Planning

Geographic Information Services

Subdivision and Development

Engineering

Building



Fire Protection Services

District of Sooke
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Corporate Services
2014 Year End Report
The Corporate Services department is directed by the Chief Administrative Officer and has a
broad range of responsibilities ranging from managing elections for the District of Sooke to the
legislated responsibilities for corporate administration.
Council Meetings and Proceedings
The Corporate Services Department is primarily responsible for the coordination and
proceedings of Council, particularly with respect to meetings regulated under the Community
Charter, the Local Government Act and the District of Sooke Bylaw 422, Council Procedure
Bylaw, 2009. Council can only conduct its business at a duly authorized meeting where there is
a quorum of Council present.
Council Committees and Commissions
The District of Sooke Council has established a number of committees and commissions. The
term “committee” is commonly used to refer to all of these bodies. There are three primary types
of committees (standing, select and commission) that may be established by the Mayor or the
Mayor and Council. There are also statutory boards and authorities established by senior levels
of government; for example, the Board of Variance is a statutory committee that works at arm’s
length from Council.
Corporate Services provides administrative support to Council Committees. There were seven
Committees that continued to meet in 2014; Board of Variance, Climate Change Action,
Community Grant Review, Emergency Planning, Finance and Administration and Land Use and
Environment. Corporate Services also provided administrative support to the Community
Centre Information Committee, Primary Health Care Services Working Group and
Accommodation Tax Steering Committee.

District of Sooke
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Standing Committees
The Finance and Administration Committee provides advice to Council on the District’s financial
and administrative affairs. In 2014, the Finance Committee reviewed and finalized the 20142018 Five Year Financial Plan, which was adopted by Council in April along with the Property
Tax Rate Bylaw. The Committee completed the review of the Fire Protection Services Bylaw
and Sooke Fire Rescue Service Policies and Standard Operating Guidelines which were also
adopted by Council in April 2014.
The Land Use and Environment Committee makes recommendations to Council on matters
related to planning, zoning and affordable housing. In 2014, the Committee made
recommendations to Council on several rezoning applications, development permits and
development variance permits. The Committee continued the review of the Subdivision and
Development Standards Bylaw, referring the Bylaw to Committee of the Whole for final review
and approval. Bylaw No. 404, Subdivision and Development Standards Bylaw, 2014 was
adopted by Council in October 2014.

Select Committees
•

Community Grant Review Committee
The Community Grant Review Committee met in May and October 2014 to review and
make recommendations to Council on Community Grant applications received from local
non-profit organizations. The Committee identifies projects or special activities that build
volunteer capacity and enhance the community through sports and recreation, arts and
culture, heritage, public safety and community welfare, community beautification and
environmental projects. In 2014, the Committee provided recommendations to Council
for approval of $60,274.00 in funding to Category A grants and $45,422.39 in funding to
Category B grants.

•

Emergency Planning Committee
The Emergency Planning Committee provides recommendations to Council regarding
matters related to the planning, development, maintenance, and training of all aspects of
emergency management within the District of Sooke. The Committee participated in a
number of local and regional events in 2014 including; the Westshore Emergency
Preparedness Fair, the International Critical Incident Stress Foundation Conference,
Tsunami Awareness and Planning workshop and the Great BC Shakeout. The
Committee will also be working with Sooke Fire Rescue Service and the District of
Sooke in coordinating the Vancouver Island Emergency Preparedness Conference
being held at the Prestige Hotel in April 2015.
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Mayor’s Public Advisory Panels
The three Mayor’s Public Advisory Panels in the areas of Arts and Beautification, Economic
Development and Community Health and Social Issues, continued to meet and provide updates
and recommendations to Council.
A.

The Mayor’s Panel on Arts and
Beautification played a key role in
promoting the arts as well as making
enhancements to beautification in the
community. In 2014, the Arts and
Beautification panel participated in and
completed some of the following projects
within the community:









The addition of 8 flower barrels in the
Town Centre adopted by local
businesses/individuals
Concept and implementation of the Thursday Night Market at the Museum
Participation in the Scott’s Miracle Gro Best Garden – 2014 Best Garden Selection
Program
Participation in the 2014 Communities in Bloom
Participation in the Sooke Fall Fair
Participation in the SEAPARC Festival of Trees
Christmas tree light-up and Christmas swags in the Town Centre

The Arts and Beautification Panel coordinated the District of Sooke’s participation in the
2014 Communities in Bloom in which the District received its third 5 Bloom status with a
special mention for the District of Sooke Communities in Bloom Profile Book.
B.

The Mayor’s Advisory Panel on Community Health and Social Issues, in
conjunction with the Sooke Region Community Health Iniatiative (CHI), worked to
identify issues within the community in the areas of health and social wellbeing. The
group reported to Council on community needs such as an expansion of Ayre Manor, a
senior’s drop in center, mental health services, the need for more family physicians,
improvements to transportation infrastructure, youth services and planning for an aging
population.
Faced with a long list of subjects to tackle, the Mayor’s Panel on Community Health and
Social Issues formed the Primary Health Care Services Working Group (PHCSWG),
tasked to create an action plan to identify and address health care services gaps and
priorities in the Sooke region. Additionally, the Mayor’s Panel identified an opportunity to
combine their efforts with CHI under a Memorandum of Agreement with the District of
Sooke in 2014 to provide support for activities that will improve the health and wellbeing
of Sooke residents. CHI coordinated the successful application for the 2015 AgeFriendly Community Planning and Project Grant.
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C.

The Mayor’s Panel on Economic Development works to identify ways to stimulate
economic activity within the community.

2014 Report of the Mayors Advisory Panel on Economic Development
The panel met every third Thursday throughout 2014. The early focus was supporting the Chamber as
Public
Information
and
Communications
it considered
a path to
financial
sustainability and growth and the creation of an economic
development portfolio.
The Chamber was connected to the Continuing Studies department at Royal Roads University and
that project is now actively moving ahead with the hope that more educational opportunities will be
made available to Sooke residents through. For example, Business Education programs championed
by the Chamber will be made available through the Library in Sooke.
A considerable effort was made to bring a composting facility to Sooke, including hosting a site visit
by a potential proponent. In the end, there was insufficient interest to pursue the proposal. The
Panel remains convinced that a viable business case exists given the right political circumstances.
Mateo Ocejo, the President of Net Zero Waste presented to the panel on his successful operations in
other communities particularly when done in partnership with First Nations Communities.
The business and resident survey on economic development that was done by the panel clearly
expressed the sentiments of what the community felt were priorities for Sooke.
Other ideas that were investigated by the panel included:
•
•
•

expansions of the sewage treatment plant to a full transfer station;
bringing together telecommuters in Sooke and increasing bandwidth to Sooke;
the future of the DeMamiel Golf Course and nearby baseball diamond and meeting with the
Community Association;
•
bringingServices
back theDepartment
triathlon to Sooke,
The Corporate
is responsible for the coordination of all Public Input
•
the
development
of
a
business
incubator
(Sookerator);
Meetings and Open Houses. Members
of the public
attended two Open Houses in 2014; a
• the expansion of the sewer system to promote development;
Public Input Meeting held at Sunriver on the proposed Sunriver Playing Fields and a District of
• location of Sea Salt production in Sooke;
Sooke Spring Community Open House held at the Community Hall. Residents had an
• the attractiveness of Sooke to the High Tech sector (Guest: Dan Gunn);
opportunity to discuss current municipal projects and initiatives with Council and staff including;
• promotion of alternative energy businesses;
Connector Road Project, the new Emergency Plan, Boat Launch Management and Town
• improving political support for the Mariner’s Village Project;
Centre Design Guideline.
• the rationale and advantages of amalgamating SRTA and the Chamber to handle tourism
marketing for the region;
• over 55’s as a target market; and,
• the creation of a Sooke Economic Development Agency.
Our congratulations to Adrenaline and AOS Accumulated Ocean Energy for their 2014 Greater
Victoria Business Awards showing that Sooke can punch above its weight.
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Public Communication
Council strives to provide timely and current information to the public. The Corporate Services
department manages updates to the District website regularly with current issues, notices and
general information (www.sooke.ca). Through the IT Department, a significant update to the
District of Sooke website was started in 2013 in order to bring the www.sooke.ca address to
current coding standards. The new website went live in May 2014.
The District of Sooke publishes weekly Council Column ads in both the Sooke News Mirror and
the Sooke Voice News as to current updates and notices, including the public meeting schedule
for upcoming public meetings.
The Annual Report is prepared by the Corporate Services Department and as required under
the Community Charter, an Annual Municipal Meeting is held annually in June. The Annual
Report must include:

 A statement of objectives and measures that will be used as the basis for determining
the municipality's performance during 2014 and 2015.
Based on the District of Sooke Corporate Strategic Plan and Five-year Financial
Plan, the 2014 Annual Municipal Report included the 2014- 2015 Municipal
Objectives and Measures to be used as the basis for determining the
municipality’s performance during the current and following years.
 The performance of the municipality with respect to established objectives and
measures for 2013.
The 2014 Annual Municipal Report presented the progress reporting on the
performance of the municipality with respect to the municipal objectives and
measures established in the 2013 Annual Municipal Report.
 A list of permissive tax exempted properties for 2013;
The Annual Report included a list of the permissive tax exemptions adopted by
Council for 2013 and for each exemption, the amount of property tax that would
have been imposed during 2013 if the exemption had not been granted.
 The audited financial statements for 2013;
The municipal auditors presented to Council the 2013 Audited Financial
Statements at the May 12th, 2014 Council meeting. The statements were
included in the Annual Report.
 A report on the municipality’s services and operations for 2013;
The Annual Report presented a section from each of the District of Sooke
departments as to the municipal services and operations for 2013, including
highlights and major achievements. These sections provided an opportunity to
inform the public on all major changes and developments. The statements were
previously provided to Council as 2013 year end reports.
 Declarations of disqualification (if any).
For 2013, there were no declarations of disqualification.
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Bylaws and Policies
The Corporate Services Department is also responsible for municipal bylaws and policies and
accordingly, coordinates the public process for the adoption of the bylaw and policies. In 2014,
Council adopted 20 bylaws and considered and introduced several more. There were several
financial bylaws adopted in 2014 including:
•
•
•
•

The 2014-2018 Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw with the 2014 Property Tax Rate Bylaw
A Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw adopted annually to provide for the borrowing
of money in anticipation of revenue
A Fees Amendment Bylaw to amend fees at the District of Sooke Public Boat Launch
A Carbon Tax Rebate Reserve Fund Bylaw and a Playing Fields Reserve Fund Bylaw

Most notably, a review of the Fire Protection Services Bylaw and review of the Subdivision and
Development Standards Bylaw was undertaken in 2014. Bylaw No 404, Subdivision and
Development Standards Bylaw, 2014 was adopted in October. Council also adopted a new
Election Procedures Bylaw and adopted several amendments to the District of Sooke Official
Community Plan Bylaw, 2010 and Sooke Zoning Bylaw, 2013.
Several policies were amended in 2014 including; Community Grant Program Policy,
Purchasing and Disposal of Assets Policy, Code of Ethics Policy, Respectful Workplace Policy
and Anti-Bullying and Harassment Policy. In addition, several new policies were introduced and
adopted by Council; Sooke Fire Rescue Department Standard Operating Guidelines, Employee
Services Awards Policy, Town Centre Illustrative Design Handbook Policy, Memorial Dedication
Policy and Electronic Agenda Policy.
Bylaws
Subdivision and Development Standards
Official Community Plan -- Town Centre Design Guidelines
Fees
Fire Regulation
Financial Plan and Tax Rate and Revenue Anticipation Borrowing
Carbon Tax Rebate Reserve Fund
Election Procedures
Sooke Zoning (600) Amendments
Sooke Core Sewer Specified Area
Permissive Tax
Delegation
Policies
Memorial Dedication
Town Centre Design Guidelines
Community Grant Program
Electronic Agenda Systems and Devices
Purchasing and Disposal of Assets
Codes of Ethics, Respectful Workplace, Bullying & Anti-Harassment
Sooke Fire Rescue Department Standard Operating Guidelines
Sooke Fire Rescue Department Standard Operating Guidelines
Sooke Fire Rescue Department Volunteer Member Grievance Policy
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Conferences
The District of Sooke partnering agreement with the Prestige Oceanfront Resort allows for 12
days free usage per calendar month of meeting, event or convention spaces within the Resort’s
facilities. Eligible, non-profit organizations are able to use the facilities for no charge, with local
groups having booking priority. In 2014, 98 bookings were made through the Agreement. This
included the Mayor’s Public Advisory Panel meetings and many local community groups.
Several regional non-profits also accessed the space when available.
In addition, Sooke Fire Rescue Service hosted the International Critical Incident Stress
Foundation Conference at the Prestige Hotel in October 2014 under the District of Sooke
partnering agreement.
Council Conventions
Council attended three major Conventions in 2014; the Association of Vancouver Island and
Coastal Communities (AVICC) Convention held in Qualicum Beach, the Federation of Canadian
Municipalities (FCM) held in Niagara Falls and the Union of British Columbia Municipalities
(UBCM) held in Whistler. By attending annual Conventions, Council members receive important
information through a variety of presentations and workshops by key political speakers and
develop networking opportunities at the local, provincial and federal government levels.
Records Management
Records Management is the ongoing process of maintaining the records of the District of Sooke
and the District’s Records Management System. The Corporate Services Department is
responsible for Records Management and for processing Freedom of Information Access
Requests.
During the summer of 2014, a Camosun College Co-op Student was hired for a four month
term. The student worked in the area of records management and provided general
administrative support during tax season. Under the direction of Corporate Services staff, the
summer student completed a number of projects including scanning and archiving completed
Development Services applications. To date, the majority of the District’s Land based
applications have been scanned and attached to TEMPEST – the District’s Land Management
Database making records easily accessible to staff.
The District’s Local Government Management Association (LGMA) file system was updated in
preparation for the new Council term. A total of 81 boxes of records, including applications were
archived and sent to off-site storage in 2014.
Projects for 2015 include the conversion of microfiche records into digital format and the
implementation of SharePoint to manage the District’s electronic records.
Elections
The District of Sooke General Local Election was held on November 15th, 2014. The Corporate
Services Department is responsible for the preparation and coordination of municipal elections,
which begins more than a year in advance of Election Day. The District of Sooke contracts for a
Chief Election Officer and the Corporate Officer is appointed as the Deputy Chief Election
Officer.
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Newly Elected Officials
The Inaugural Meeting of Council was held in the Council
Chambers on December 1st, 2014. The newly elected
Council was led in precession into the Council Chambers
by Sooke Pipes and Drums piper Lynn Moffatt. Mayor
Maja Tait and Council members were given their Oath of
Office and Oath of Allegiance by Notary Public Shawna
Farmer. Following Mayor Tait’s Inaugural Address,
members of the public joined Council and Staff for
refreshments at a small reception in the Firefighter’s
Lounge.
Council attended several orientation sessions, including a
session with lower Vancouver Island municipalities held in Victoria.
Special Events
Throughout the year, members of Council and staff participate in several special events within
the community and the municipal offices. The Corporate Services Department is responsible for
coordinating special events.
Public Information
In May 2014, The District of Sooke participated in the Sooke Rotary Auction and Spring Fair at
SEAPARC Leisure Complex. Members of Council and staff presented information to the public
on the 2014-2018 Five Year Financial Plan, 2014 Corporate Strategic Priorities, the Connector
Road and future road network projects.
A public information meeting was held in March 2014 to provide an opportunity for the public to
talk to Council and staff on current municipal projects and initiatives, including:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Proposed Sunriver playing fields
DRAFT Community Energy and Emissions Plan (CEEP) Connector Road Project update
Proposed 2014 – 2018 Five Year Financial Plan
New Sooke Emergency Plan
Tsunami Signage
Boat Launch Management Survey
RCMP – Citizens on Patrol and Speedwatch
Sooke Community Health Initiative
Mayor’s Public Advisory Panel on Arts & Beautification (including Communities in
Bloom)
Town Centre Design Guidelines
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Wadams Way Opening
On September 27th, 2014, the District of Sooke
celebrated the official opening of “Wadams Way’,
the newly constructed east-west connector road
and multi-use trail through the Town Centre.
Following speeches by Mayor Wendal Milne,
Regional Director Mike Hicks, Consultants,
Nathan Dunlop and Peter Ferguson and Wadams
family member Peter Cook, Council opened the
new Connector Road with an official ribbon cutting
and rode down the newly completed Wadams
Way in a fire truck.
Following the opening of Wadams Way, the District of Sooke participated in the Sooke Family
Resource Society Wadams Way Public Market to celebrate 30 years of service for the Sooke
Family Resource Society and the 10th Anniversary of Children’s Health Foundation’s Sooke
Child, Youth and Family Centre.
Santa Claus Parade
The District of Sooke co-hosted the Sooke Region Chamber of Commerce Santa Claus Parade
where the newly elected Council participated in the festivities.
Staff Events
District staff participates in several fundraising
activities throughout the year. In August, staff took
on a challenge from SEAPARC in the ALS Ice
Bucket Challenge fundraiser in which the District
challenged the Sooke Region Chamber of
Commerce. The overall staff/United Way
Campaign for 2014 was a huge success. Payroll
contributions increased 14% this year, with a total
of $5,057 raised in support of local United Way
programs.
At Christmas time, staff took part in numerous fundraising efforts including collection for the
Sooke Christmas Bureau Help Fill a Fire Truck Campaign and contributed to the CUPE 374
Annual Socks for Kids Drive.
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BYLAW COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT
The Bylaw Compliance and Enforcement department has worked diligently to establish relationships
in the community such that the public are more inclined to call the bylaw enforcement department in a
timely manner, which generally, affects the outcome of actions taken resulting in less time dealing
with a particular issue. This has been a rather challenging year for the Bylaw department due to a few
property use issues that have consumed a great amount of staff time and legal resources.
There were 307 “Calls for Service” in 2014. Breaking the total ‘Calls for Service’ down, 244 calls were
for Bylaw contraventions and 63 were for Parking which represents:
•
•

9.52% increase in Traffic complaints as compared to 2013
29.66% increase in Bylaw complaints as compared to 2013
COMPLAINT
Animals
Burning
Business Licence Queries
Civil
Farm Animal
Illegal Grow Op
Illegal Suites
Noise Construction
Noise General
Private Property General
Private Property Unsightly
Public Property Boulevards
Public Property Garbage
Public Property General
Signs
Work Without Permit
Zoning Non-Compliance
Total

NUMBER
18
20
4
17
2
1
4
4
24
24
35
2
4
19
16
14
36
244

BUSINESS LICENCING
Business Licences Issued
As of December 31, 2014, 613 Business Licences were issued as follows:
LICENCE
Commercial Large
Commercial Small
Home-Based
Intermunicipal
Non-Resident
Daily
Peddler
Direct Seller
Total

District of Sooke

NUMBER
20
181
164
219
24
2
2
1
613
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This represents an 8% increase in total business licences as compared to December 31, 2013. There
were 100 new Business Licence applications received in 2014, which represents a 7% increase in
new applications over 2013.
Business Licence Complaints
There were only four complaints related to Businesses operating within the District of Sooke.
There were two complaints each of “Operating without a Licence” for Home-Based and Intermunicipal
Businesses.

Bylaw Enforcement and Business Licence Official
Professional development for the Bylaw Enforcement and Business Licence official in 2014 included:
•

Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design course, which includes planning
communities that are people friendly, walkable, visually pleasing and through design makes
communities safer. There is a second level to this course that goes into much more detail in
actual planning of areas.

•

A second course attended was instructed by the law firm of Dominion GovLaw entitled
Prosecute This 2, which was held in Richmond in November 2014. This course deals with a
higher level of prosecuting Bylaw offences and various methods of achieving compliance.

•

The District of Sooke Licence Inspector, along with those from the other 12 Municipalities on
Southern Vancouver Island, continues to meet to discuss Intermunicipal Business Licencing to
ensure we are consistent in our approaches and Bylaws. This is proving to be very effective as
an education tool as well as networking. The group frequently invites speakers of various
organizations to attend and address the group. An example of previous speakers includes
representatives from the Better Business Bureau, Vancouver Island Health Authority Licence
Department and those speaking on Medical Marijuana legislative changes.
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Finance Department
2014 Year End Report

MESSAGE FROM THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE
It is my pleasure to highlight the key accomplishments in 2014 for the Finance Department.
2014 was a year of continued progress in the finance department with a number of priorities that
were achieved in 2014.
Budget:
Through a number of meetings with the Finance and Administration Committee and Council, a
preliminary approval of the 2014 – 2018 Five Year Financial Plan was achieved in early
February. This is in line with the previous year and earlier than in years prior to that and a
testament to the hard work of every department head and the CAO in the preparation of the
budget.
The 2014 – 2018 Five Year Financial Plan was brought forward into bylaw format and approved
by Council on May 12th, before the provincially legislated deadline of May 15th.
The 2014 budget achieved Council’s objective of less than a 2% overall tax increase while also
setting additional funds aside for future capital replacement projects.
With the civic election in November 2014, the 2015 budget process will begin in early 2015 after
the newly elected Council has completed their strategic planning sessions.
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2013 Year-end:
Staff worked with the external auditors to finalize the 2013 Financial Statements to meet the
statutory deadline of May 15th. The financial statements were received and approved by
Council on May 12th.
A number of recommendations from the audit of the 2011 Financial Statements were
implemented by the department in 2012. This resulted in a significant reduction in the number
of recommendations coming from the audit of the 2012 Financial Statements. The Finance
Department, in conjunction with all other District departments, successfully continued to work
hard to improve the internal processes and controls. This was demonstrated by another
reduction in the number of recommendations coming from the audit of the 2013 Financial
Statements.
Property Taxes:
The tax rates must be set before May 15th each year and for 2014 they were set on May 12th.
Once the tax rates have been set tax notices need to be generated and mailed out. Again in
2014, the department managed to issue the tax notices in a timely manner by mailing them out
by the first week of June. There were 5,972 tax notices mailed out for 2014.
The month of June and the first week of July is a very busy time for the Finance Department
and the front counter staff as we process and collect the property taxes for the year. Property
taxes made up approximately 35% of all revenue for the municipality in 2014. The property tax
due date this year was July 2, 2014 and accounts with outstanding balances after this date had
a 10% penalty applied.
The District of Sooke has two primary sources of taxation revenue, property taxes and sewer
parcel tax. Property taxation is the largest source of revenue for the District of Sooke, 34.61%
of total revenue. Sewer parcel tax (including the sewer generation charge) amounts to 8.35% of
total revenues.
Of the 5,815 properties that had taxes applied in 2014, 4,987 paid their taxes before the due
date. This represents 86% of the tax folios.
As mentioned above, properties that have not paid their taxes before the tax due date receive a
10% penalty on outstanding current year taxes. For 2014 the penalty that has been applied was
$153,925. The penalty amount and the percentage paid before the due date statistics are
consistent with previous years.
Property Tax Sale:
Each year, on the last Monday of September, municipalities across the Province of BC hold
their annual tax sale if necessary. Under provincial legislation, the collector must hold a tax sale
for any properties that have delinquent taxes outstanding. For 2014 delinquent taxes are
outstanding taxes from the 2012 property tax year. The Tax Sale date for 2014 was September
29th.
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Finance department staff begin contacting property owners with delinquent taxes at the
beginning of August to attempt to do everything possible to avoid having properties go to tax
sale. This year there were over 100 properties that had delinquent taxes when staff began
contacting property owners, and staff was able to collect on every property prior to the tax sale.
There was no tax sale this year.
Human Resources:
Staff continues to work on a number of human resources related projects and tasks.
Community Grant Funding:
The Community Grant Program is designed to assist non-profit organizations with projects or
activities that promote community well-being.
A new Community Grant Program Policy was
developed and was adopted by Council in
February 2014. The new policy strengthens fiscal
responsibility and accountability by limiting the
grant categories, introducing a maximum award
level, improving application templates, and
streamlining application intake dates. The
changes help ensure that the community is getting
the best value for tax payer funding.
Fiscal 2014 was another successful year with the District issuing 13 grants totalling $60,274 to
Category A applicants, and an additional 13 grants totalling $45,422 to Category B applicants.
Pre-authorized Withdrawal Plan (PAWS)
The success of this five year old project continued into fiscal 2014. This program has gone from
262 last year to 291 participants in 2014. The program automatically debits the account
holder’s bank account on the first business day of each month from August to May with the
balance automatically debited on the property tax due date.
Electronic Home Owner Grant (e-HOG)
Like the PAWS, 2014 was the sixth year for the Electronic Home Owner Grant. Not all
municipalities participate in this program but those that do are finding considerable customer
satisfaction and increased usage. Our statistics show that usage increased from 1,385 in 2013
to 1,422 in 2014. In addition to added convenience for the property tax payer, the e-HOG
program has resulted in processing time savings.
Deferred Property Tax:
In 2013 there were 134 property owners who used this provincial government program and in
2014 there were 137 participants. The total dollar value of deferred taxes amounted to
$355,923 in 2014 ($336,726 in 2013).
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Information Technology:
The winter of 2014 saw consolidation of servers, replacement of aging server hardware and
enhancements in internal wireless capabilities.
In the Spring of 2014 network hardware was installed that replaced an outdated appliance. The
new firewall examines traffic based on access rules, geographic location, content, application
types and blocks known viruses or malware. Protecting the internal network becomes more
challenging with each passing year as attacks become more sophisticated and prevalent across
all sectors of IT.
Also in the Spring of 2014 a new sooke.ca website was launched in partnership with AMDS, a
local Sooke web development studio. The new website was built on a WordPress platform with
custom templates developed by AMDS. The result was a mobile friendly website that’s easy to
navigate by end users and easy to update by district staff.
In the Summer of 2014 RFP’s were issued for IT Augmentation services and Asset
Management solutions. Two vendors were ultimately chosen and these solutions were
implemented in the fall of 2014. The IT augmentation minimizes the risk a single person IT
department presents. The asset management software helps the District accurately forecast the
resources required for asset replacement, maintenance and repair and future growth.
In the Fall of 2014 the Districts business license software was updated as the current solution
was no longer supported starting in 2015. The new solution is tightly integrated into our existing
land management software.
The year was rounded out with the election of a new council and the move to paperless
agendas. iPads were purchased for council and with our existing Granicus software for video
streaming we were able to provide an app that enables digital agendas. Inside the app council
and staff can take notes, bookmark reports or attachments and annotate sections of the agenda
much like they would on paper. Thousands of pages of paper will be saved moving forward.
Conclusion:
2014 was a busy year for the Finance Department with many new initiatives in addition to the
many statutory requirements. The department began work on and completed many IT and
Human Resources related projects while still maintaining our regular day to day operations.
It is believed that in 2015 the Department can continue to build on its accomplishments and
continue providing sound management of the District’s assets and continue its delivery of
exceptional customer service through timely, accurate information to stakeholders both
internally and externally.
It is critical that sound fiscal responsibility be considered in all decisions. Fiscal Responsibility
must include sustainable decisions. Sustainable decisions are those that meet the needs of the
present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.
Michael Dillabaugh, CA
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2015 Permissive Tax Exemptions
In accordance with section 98(2)(b) of the Community Charter, the following properties in the District of Sooke were
provided permissive property tax exemptions by Council in 2014. (District of Sooke Bylaw Nos. 337, 338, 506 and 550)

CIVIC ADDRESS

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Term of
Exemption

Exemption
Value

Public Worship (Mandatory Exemptions)
Sooke Baptist Church, 7110 West Coast Road

Lot A, Plan VIP61481, Section 2&3, PID 023-142-391

Note 1

$19,933.27

Sooke Pentecostal Church, 6851 West Coast Rd.

Lot B, Plan 18924, Section 3, PID 003-818-985

Note 1

$ 2,818.68

Holy Trinity Anglican Church, 1962 Murray Road

Lot 1, Plan VIP1169, Section 3, PID 007-838-166

Note 1

$10,282.44

Knox Presbyterian Church, 2096 Church Road

Lot 1, Plan VIP86034, Section PT 10, PID 027-757-439

Note 1

$ 3,579.65

Juan de Fuca Seventh Day Adventist Church, 6251
Sooke Road

Lot 1, Plan VIP9917, Section 15, PID 000-349-909

Note 1

$ 927.44

Juan de Fuca Seventh Day Adventist Church, 6255
Sooke Road

Lot 1, Plan 9247, Section 15, PID 000-042-951

Note 1

$ 1,271.77

Sooke Congregation of Jehovah’s Witnesses, 2207
Church Road

Lot A, Plan VIP74513, Section 26, PID 025-527-045

Note 1

$ 4,088.43

Plan 1540, Sooke Land District, Firstly: Lot W8 Sec 3 Plan
1540 Secondly: Lots 9 and 10 Sec 3 Plan 1540, PID 007239-076
Sooke Community Association Ballpark, Throup Road Lot 2, Plan VIP59555, Section 14, PID 018-906-087

2008 - 2017

$ 8,668.20

2008 - 2017

$ 7,285.77

Sooke Community Association Parking Area &
Ballpark, Throup Road

Lot 1, Plan VIP5996, Section 14, PID 005-936-497

2008 - 2017

$ 5,033.08

Sooke Community Association Parking Area &
Ballpark, 6521 Throup Road

Parcel A, Lot 2, Plan VIP5996, Section 14, PID 005-936-802 2008 - 2017

$ 1,583.43

Sooke Community Association Parking Area &
Ballpark, Throup Road

Parcel A, Block 7, Plan VIP5855, Section 14, PID 005-941245

2008 - 2017

$ 1,600.19

Sooke Community Association, Fred Milne Park,

Lot 2, Plan VIP17066, Section 15, PID 004-132-289

2008 - 2017

$ 7,416.24

Sooke Community Association Park “Sooke Flats”,
2039 Phillips Road

Sooke Land District, Parcel F of Section 27, Except Plan
VIP76239, PID 009-374-591

2008 - 2017

$12,010.31

Sooke Community Association Parking Area and
Ballpark, Phillips Road

Plan VIP7017, Sooke Land District, Lot 4, Section 73, PID
005-801-818

2008 - 2017

$ 4,390.14

Sooke Lions Club Park, Murray Road

Plan VIP2451, Sooke Land District, Lot B, Section 3, PID
006-576-290

2008 - 2017

$ 1,878.87

Summer Camp of Brownies and Girl Guides, Sooke
River Road

Sooke Land District, Parcel B of Section 45, PID 009-387234

2008 - 2017

$ 5,779.94

Camp Thunderbird, Glinz Lake Road

Sooke Land District, Secs 56 & 57 Sooke and Parcel A of Sec 2008 - 2017

$11,435.89

Camp Thunderbird, Glinz Lake Road

Block A, Section 59, PID 009-388-702

2008 - 2017

$ 5,387.02

Camp Thunderbird, Glinz Lake Road

Block A, Section 60, PID 009-388-729

2008 - 2017

$ 4,859.21

Public Parks and Recreation Purposes
(Permissive Exemptions)
Sooke Community Hall, 2039 Shields Road
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2015 Permissive Tax Exemptions (continued)

CIVIC ADDRESS

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Term of
Exemption

Exemption
Value

Non-Profit Charitable Organizations
St. Vincent de Paul Society, 6750 West Coast
Road

Lot 2, Plan VIP15068, Section 3, PID 004-171-306

2008 - 2017

$ 8,556.11

Queen Alexandra Foundation for Children,
2145 Townsend Road South

Lot A, Plan VIP74590, Section 10, PID 025-545-582

2008 - 2017

$36,783.79

Maple Avenue Government Wharf

Sooke Land District, Sooke Harbour Authority on
Government Wharf (water lot 193)

2008 - 2017

$ 9,216.88

Maple Avenue Government Wharf

Lot 193, Sooke Land District, Government Wharf on
Water Lot 193

2008 - 2017

$ 653.48

Sooke Pacific #54 Branch, Royal Canadian
Legion

Lot A, Plan VIP1540, Section 3, Portion D79952, PID
007-239-122

2008 - 2017

$9,247.69

Sooke Elderly Citizens Society (Ayre Manor)

Lot 11, Plan 16754, Section 3, PID 004-051-050

2008 - 2017

$49,850.13

Sooke Mount Shepherd Masonic Association

Lot 5, Plan 6365, Section 26, PID 001-646-931

2008 - 2017

$10,683.93

Sooke Hospice Society

Lot 15, Plan VIP69170, Section 10, PID 005-445-809

2012-2021

$6,052.79

Juan de Fuca Salmon Restoration Society

Section 3, Otter Land District Parcel A, Except Plan 3943 2013-2022
Leased Part of PCLA, MH#9047, PID 009-496-939

$13,808.03

Lot B, Plan VIP69170, Section 73, PID 024-548-031

$20,082.57

Museum
Sooke Regional Historical Society Museum,
Phillips Road

TOTAL

2008 - 2017

$282,472.42

Note 1: The term of the exemption is indefinite as long as the property is used for public worship purposes as per the
Community Charter.
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MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The accompanying financial statements of District of Sooke (the "District") are the responsibility of
management and have been prepared in compliance with applicable legislation, and in accordance
with public sector accounting standards for governments as recommended by the Public Sector
Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. A summary of the significant
accounting policies are described in note 1 to the financial statements. The preparation of financial
statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management’s judgment, particularly
when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty until future
periods.
The District’s management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in
compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial information is available
on a timely basis for preparation of the financial statements. These systems are monitored and
evaluated by management.
Mayor and Council meet with management and the external auditors to review the financial
statements and discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to their
approval of the financial statements.
The financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent external auditors appointed
by the District. The accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report outlines their responsibilities, the
scope of their examination and their opinion on the District’s financial statements.
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KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants
St. Andrew's Square II
800-730 View Street
Victoria BC V8W 3Y7

Telephone
Fax
Internet

(250) 480-3500
(250) 480-3539
www.kpmg.ca

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Mayor and Councillors of District of Sooke
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of District of Sooke, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2014, the statements of operations, change in net debt
and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
District of Sooke as at December 31, 2014, and its results of operations, its change in net debt and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Chartered Accountants
May 11, 2015
Victoria, Canada

KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG
network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative
(KPMG International), a Swiss entity.
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP.
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2014, with comparative information for 2013
2014

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2)
Property taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Other assets (note 10(a))

$

Financial liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deposits
Deferred revenue (note 3)
Employee benefit obligations (note 4)
Long-term liabilities (note 5)

Net debt
Non-financial assets:
Tangible capital assets (note 6)
Prepaid expenses

Accumulated surplus (note 7)

$

10,402,072
1,588,618
469,383
125,914
12,585,987

2013
(Recasted
- note 12)
$

10,968,703
1,445,233
237,421
122,367
12,773,724

2,831,670
824,844
3,261,839
193,092
6,730,897
13,842,342

2,665,642
680,155
5,947,485
183,555
7,216,170
16,693,007

(1,256,355)

(3,919,283)

99,181,516
444,574
99,626,090

97,695,248
393,453
98,088,701

98,369,735

$

94,169,418

Commitments and contingent liabilities (note 10)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Statement of Operations
Year ended December 31, 2014, with comparative information for 2013
Financial Plan
(note 11)
Revenue:
Net taxes available for municipal
purposes (note 8)
Sales and user fees
Government transfers (note 9)
Investment income
Penalties and fines
Licenses and permits
Lease and rental
Donations and contributions
Developer cost charges
Sewer operating revenue
Casino revenue sharing
Total revenue

$

Expenses:
General government
Protective services
Engineering
Recreation and culture
Planning and development
Sewer
Total expenses
Annual surplus
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year
Accumulated surplus, end of year

$

6,520,255
110,683
619,871
80,000
194,146
421,549
57,166
1,873,883
1,944,473
270,504
12,092,530

2014

$

7,012,071
66,529
2,778,113
196,027
221,198
486,488
51,363
1,967,521
1,262,339
1,906,630
232,936
16,181,215

2013

$

6,955,089
87,442
436,326
160,940
203,766
397,382
42,208
2,029,281
1,125,272
1,901,840
245,945
13,585,491

2,357,438
2,978,023
2,620,824
433,930
798,845
2,192,413
11,381,473

2,261,319
3,151,596
2,752,325
1,002,943
705,884
2,106,831
11,980,898

2,173,604
2,986,978
2,618,714
992,021
728,073
2,086,889
11,586,279

711,057

4,200,317

1,999,212

94,169,418

94,169,418

92,170,206

94,880,475

$

98,369,735

$

94,169,418

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Statement of Change in Net Debt
Year ended December 31, 2014, with comparative information for 2013
Financial Plan
( note 11)

Annual surplus

$

Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Developer contributions of tangible
capital assets
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets

711,057

2014

$

4,200,317

2013
(Recasted
- note 12)
$

1,999,212

(4,450,860)

(2,262,835)

(1,674,296)

(2,011,752)

(1,964,376)
65,026
35,000
(1,486,268)

(2,022,769)
25,773
(1,073,259)

(51,121)

(79,640)

Acquisition of prepaid expenses

-

Change in net debt

(1,300,695)

2,662,928

Net debt, beginning of year

(3,919,283)

(3,919,283)

(4,765,596)

(1,256,355) $

(3,919,283)

Net debt, end of year

$

(5,219,978)

$

846,313

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended December 31, 2014, with comparative information for 2013
2014

2013

Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities:
Annual surplus
Items not involving cash:
Developer contributions of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets
Actuarial adjustment on debt
Changes in non-cash operating assets and liabilities:
Property taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deposits
Employee benefit obligations
Deferred revenue
Prepaid expenses

$

Capital activities:
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets
Financing activities:
Decrease in obligations under capital lease
Debt payments

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

4,200,317

$

1,999,212

(1,964,376)
2,640,917
65,026
(102,734)

(2,022,769)
2,598,033
(86,627)

(143,385)
(231,962)
(3,547)
166,028
144,689
9,537
(2,685,646)
(51,121)
2,043,743

(168,653)
(43,197)
(5,687)
733,812
255,534
22,647
(552,209)
(79,640)
2,650,456

(2,262,835)
35,000
(2,227,835)

(1,674,296)
25,773
(1,648,523)

(382,539)
(382,539)

(65,178)
(378,340)
(443,518)

(566,631)

558,415

10,968,703

10,410,288

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$

10,402,072

$

10,968,703

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest
Cash received from interest

$

437,896
162,270

$

442,949
154,201

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2014

District of Sooke (the "District") is a municipality in the Province of British Columbia and operates
under the provisions of the Local Government Act and the Community Charter of British Columbia.
The District provides municipal services such as fire, public works, engineering, planning, parks,
recreation, community development, and other general government operations.
1.

Significant accounting policies:
The financial statements of the District are prepared by management in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards for governments as recommended by the Public
Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB”) of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.
Significant accounting policies adopted by the District are as follows:
(a) Reporting entity:
The financial statements include a combination of all the assets, liabilities, accumulated
surplus, revenues and expenses of all of the District's activities and funds. Interdepartmental balances and organizational transactions have been eliminated.
The District does not control any significant external entities and accordingly no entities have
been consolidated with the financial statements.
(b) Basis of accounting:
The District follows the accrual method of accounting for revenues and expenses.
Revenues are normally recognized in the year in which they are earned and measurable.
Expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of
goods or services and/or the creation of a legal obligation to pay.
(c) Government transfers:
Government transfers without stipulations restricting their use are recognized in the financial
statements as revenue in the period in which the transfers are authorized, any eligibility
criteria are met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made. Government
transfers with stipulations restricting their use are recognized in the financial statements as
revenues in the period in which the eligible expenditures are incurred, providing they are
authorized and eligibility criteria are met.
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2014

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):
(d) Deferred revenue:
Deferred revenue includes grants, contributions and other amounts received from third
parties pursuant to legislation, regulation and agreement which may only be used in certain
programs, in the completion of specific work, or for the purchase of tangible capital assets.
In addition, certain user charges and fees are collected for which the related services have
yet to be performed. Revenue is recognized in the period when the related expenses are
incurred, services performed, or the tangible capital assets are acquired, thereby
extinguishing the related liability.
Development cost charges are amounts which are restricted by government legislation or
agreement with external parties. When qualifying expenditures are incurred development
cost charges are recognized as revenue in amounts which equal the associated expenses.
(e) Property tax revenue:
Property tax revenue is recognized on the accrual basis using the approved tax rates and
the anticipated assessment related to the current year.
(f)

Investment income:
Investment income is reported as revenue in the period earned. When required by the
funding government or related Act, investment income earned on deferred revenue is added
to the investment and forms part of the deferred revenue balance.

(g) Deposits:
Receipts restricted by third parties are deferred and reported as deposits under certain
circumstances. Deposits are returned when the third party meets their obligations or the
deposits are recognized as revenue when qualifying expenditures are incurred.
(h) Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents include investments in the Municipal Finance Authority of British
Columbia (“MFA”) Money Market Funds and are recorded at cost plus earnings reinvested in
the funds.
(i)

Long-term debt:
Long-term debt is recorded net of related payments and actuarial earnings.
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2014

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):
(j)

Employee future benefits:
The District and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan. These
contributions are expensed as incurred.
Sick leave and other retirement benefits are also available to the District’s employees. The
costs of these benefits are determined based on service and best estimates of retirement
ages and expected future salary and wage increases. The obligations under these benefit
plans are accrued based on projected benefits as the employees render services necessary
to earn the future benefits.

(k) Non-financial assets:
Non financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in
the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are
not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.
(i)

Tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The
cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, are amortized
on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Asset

Useful life - years

Land improvements
Buildings
Equipment, furniture and
vehicles
Roads and sidewalks
Storm sewer
Sanitary sewer

10 - 50
25 - 40
4 - 25
25 - 75
60
25 - 60

Amortization is charged annually, including in the year of acquisition and disposal.
Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive
use.
Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer
contribute to the District's ability to provide goods and services, or when the value of
the future economic benefits associated with the asset are less than the book value of
the asset.
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2014

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):
(k) Non-financial assets
(ii)

Contributions of tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the
date of receipt and also are recorded as revenue.

(iii) Works of art and cultural and historic assets
Works of art and cultural and historic assets are not recorded as assets in these
financial statements.
(iv) Interest capitalization
The District does not capitalize interest costs associated with the acquisition or
construction of a tangible capital asset.
(v) Leased tangible capital assets
Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership
of property are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are
accounted for as operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses
as incurred.
(l)

Use of estimates:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting
standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the period. Significant estimates include assumptions used in estimating historical
cost and useful lives of tangible capital assets and estimating provisions for accrued
liabilities including employee future benefits. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2014

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):
(m) Future accounting pronouncements:
Two new standards and amendments to standards, not yet effective for the year ended
December 31, 2014, that may potentially impact the financial statements of the District are
as follows:
(i)

PS 3450 Financial Instruments:
Financial Instruments PS 3450 and Foreign Currency Translation PS 2601 are effective
for years commencing on or after April 1, 2016. The standards are to be adopted
prospectively from the date of adoption. The new standards provide comprehensive
requirements for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial
instruments and foreign currency transactions. Under PS 3450, all financial
instruments, including derivatives, are included on the statement of financial position
and are measured either at fair value or amortized cost based on the characteristics of
the instrument and the entity’s accounting policy choices.

(ii)

PS 3260 Contaminated Sites:
This section establishes recognition, measurement and disclosure standards for
liabilities relating to contaminated sites. The District will be required to recognize a
liability when contamination exceeds an accepted environmental standard and the
District is directly responsible, or accepts responsibility for, the damage. The liability will
be measured at the District’s best estimate of the costs directly attributable to
remediation of the contamination. The Section is effective for fiscal periods beginning
on or after April 1, 2014. The impact of adoption of this standard is being evaluated by
management and the impact is not known or estimable at this time.

(n) Comparative information:
Certain comparative information has been reclassified to conform with the financial
statement presentation adopted for the current year.

2.

Cash and cash equivalents:
2014
Bank deposits
Municipal Finance Authority Money Market Funds

$

1,215,930
9,186,142

$ 10,402,072

2013
$

733,671
10,235,032

$ 10,968,703
11
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2014

3.

Deferred revenue:
2014

2013

Development cost charges
Federal Gas Tax funds
Other deferred revenue

$ 2,987,701
274,138

$ 3,807,570
1,624,817
515,098

Total deferred revenue

$ 3,261,839

$ 5,947,485

Included in other deferred revenue are grants received by the District for development of trails,
emergency planning and West Nile assistance.
Gas Tax Agreement Funds
2014
Opening balance of unspent funds

$

Add:
Amounts received during the year
Interest income restricted for projects

1,624,817

2013
$

517,456
517,456

Less amount recorded as revenue

312,764
9,954
322,718

(2,142,273)
$

-

1,397,798

(95,699)
$

1,624,817

The District receives Gas Tax funds from the Federal Government through an agreement with the
Union of BC Municipalities. Effective April 1, 2014 the agreement was revised for all new funding
and for amounts unspent from prior periods. The new agreement broadened the scope of eligible
expenditures for these funds and eliminated certain potential repayment criteria. These changes
have resulted in a change in the accounting from the previous policy which was to defer such
funds until eligible expenditures were incurred to recognize all amounts into revenue when
received, including recognizing as revenue all amounts previously deferred. The District
continues to use a reserve fund in accumulated surplus to account for the Gas Tax funds.
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2014

3.

Deferred revenue (continued):
Development Cost Charges
2014
Opening balance of unspent funds

$

Add:
Development cost charges during the year
Interest earned

3,807,570

2013
$

420,267
22,203
442,470

Less amount recorded as revenue

287,889
28,049
315,938

(1,262,339)
$

2,987,701

4,607,554

(1,115,922)
$

3,807,570

In accordance with Bylaw 408, development cost charges were reduced by $nil in 2014 (2013 $nil).

4.

Employee benefit obligations:
2014
Accrued vacation
Other contract obligations

2013

$

70,336
122,756

$

73,810
109,745

$

193,092

$

183,555

Employee benefit obligations represent accrued benefits as at December 31, 2014. Accrued
vacation is the amount of vacation entitlement carried forward into the next year. Other contract
obligations include banked overtime payable to the District’s employees and accumulated sick
leave banks for possible drawdown at future dates. These sick leave entitlements may only be
used while employed by the District and are not paid out upon retirement or termination of
employment.
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2014

4.

Employee benefit obligations (continued):
Municipal Pension Plan
The District and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (the "Plan"), a jointly
trusteed pension plan. The Board of Trustees, representing plan members and employers, is
responsible for overseeing the management of the Plan, including investment of the assets and
administration of benefits. The Plan is a multi-employer contributory pension plan. Basic pension
benefits provided are based on a formula. The plan has about 182,000 active members and
approximately 75,000 retired members. Active members include approximately 36,000
contributors from local government.
The latest valuation as at December 31, 2012 indicated a $1,370 million funding deficit for basic
pension benefits. The next valuation will be December 31, 2015 with results available in 2016.
Employers participating in the Plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution plan accounting). This is because
the Plan record accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the Plan in aggregate, with the result
that there is no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to
individual employers participating in the Plan.
The District paid $226,037 (2013 - $203,849) for employer contributions to the Plan in fiscal
2014, while employees contributed $190,960 (2013 - $168,068) to the plan in fiscal 2014.

5.

Long-term liabilities:
2014
Tax supported debt bearing interest at 6.75% and matures
in 2017 (municipal hall and fire hall)
Tax supported debt bearing interest at 4.52% and matures
in 2027 (ladder truck)
Debenture debt for sewer capital project bearing interest at
4.43% and matures in 2026
Long-term liabilities

$

$

226,977

2013

$

293,275

448,686

475,667

6,055,234

6,447,228

6,730,897

$

7,216,170

(a) Debenture debt:
The loan agreements with the Capital Regional District ("CRD") and the MFA provide that if,
at any time, the scheduled payments provided for in the agreements are not sufficient to
meet the MFA's obligations in respect of such borrowings, the resulting deficiency becomes
a liability of the District.
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2014

5.

Long-term liabilities (continued):
(a) Debenture debt (continued):
The District issues its debentures through the MFA. Debentures are issued on a sinking fund
basis, whereby the MFA invests the District's principal payments so that the payments, plus
investment income, will equal the original outstanding debt amount at the end of the
repayment period. The gross value of debenture debt at December 31, 2014 and 2013 is
$9,417,101.
(b) The principal payments required on the District's long-term debt during each of the next five
years are as follows:
Total
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

$

387,017
391,794
396,894
316,243
316,243

(c) Total interest expense on long-term debt for the year ending December 31, 2014 amounted
to $437,529 (2013 - $441,721).
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2014

6.

Tangible capital assets:

Land
Land improvements

Buildings

Equipment,
furniture and
vehicles

Roads and
sidewalks

Storm sewer Sanitary sewer

Work in
progress

Total
2014

Total
2013

Cost:
Balance,
beginning of
year
Additions
Disposals

$28,104,873
746,658
(8,126)

5,234,920
114,521
-

3,970,293
-

4,174,525
113,095
(98,592)

46,946,003
808,432
(81,162)

10,544,011
355,803
-

25,498,289
282,455
-

394,812 $124,867,726 $121,196,434
1,813,163
4,234,127
3,697,065
(6,916)
(194,796)
(25,773)

Balance, end
of year

28,843,405

5,349,441

3,970,293

4,189,028

47,673,273

10,899,814

25,780,744

2,201,059

128,907,057

124,867,726

Accumulated amortization:
Balance,
beginning of
year
Disposals
Amortization

-

1,745,304
186,990

1,892,246
138,666

2,143,983
(41,738)
222,256

17,150,851
(46,116)
1,478,166

901,365
138,322

3,338,729
476,517

-

27,172,478
(87,854)
2,640,917

24,574,445
2,598,033

Balance, end
of year

-

1,932,294

2,030,912

2,324,501

18,582,901

1,039,687

3,815,246

-

29,725,541

27,172,478

$28,843,405

3,417,147

1,939,381

1,864,527

29,090,372

9,860,127

21,965,498

2,201,059

$99,181,516

$97,695,248

Net book
value, end of
year
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2014

6.

Tangible capital assets (continued):
(a) Work in progress:
Work in progress having a value of $2,201,059 (2013 - $394,812) have not been amortized.
Amortization of these assets will commence when the asset is available for service.
(b) Contributed tangible capital assets:
Contributed tangible capital assets have been recognized at fair market value at the date of
contribution. The value of contributed capital assets received during the year is $1,964,376
(2013 - $2,022,769) comprised of land ($683,000), land improvements ($41,000) roads and
sidewalks ($684,530), storm sewer ($325,681) and sanitary sewer ($230,165).
(c) Tangible capital assets disclosed at nominal values:
Where an estimate of fair value could not be made, the tangible capital asset has been
recognized at a nominal value.
(d) Works of art and historical treasures:
The District manages and controls various works of art and non-operational historical
cultural assets including buildings, artifacts, paintings and sculptures located at District sites
and public display areas. These assets are not recorded as tangible capital assets and are
not amortized.
(e) Write-down of tangible capital assets:
No write-down of tangible capital assets occurred during the year.
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2014

7.

Accumulated surplus:
Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserves and reserve funds as
follows:
2014
Surplus:
Equity in tangible capital assets
Operating Fund
Total surplus
Reserve Funds:
Gas Tax Reserve
Fire Equipment Reserve
Parkland Reserve
Land (Non-park)
Casino Revenue Reserve
Capital Improvement Financing Reserve
SPA Revenue Reserve
Capital Works Reserve
Emergency Road Repair / Snow Removal Reserve
Carbon Tax Rebate Reserve
Community Amenities
Risk Management
Property Tax Stabilization
Revenue Smoothing Reserve
Capital Asset Replacement
Total reserve funds

2013

$ 92,120,139
2,622,085
94,742,224

$ 89,998,548
2,509,102
92,507,650

1,705,698
63,257
204,672
115,184
632,241
50,422
41,120
176,589
182,767
1,750
54,029
51,000
30,870
5,000
312,912
3,627,511

3,930
198,041
116,051
682,503
38,170
49,457
233,909
181,569
55,662
317,204
218,791
2,095,287

$ 98,369,735

$ 94,602,937
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2014

8.

Taxation:
As well as taxes for its own purposes, the District is required to collect taxes on behalf of, and
transfer these amounts to, the government agencies noted below. Taxes levied over or under
the amounts requisitioned are recorded as accounts payable or receivable.
2014
Taxes:
Property tax
Payments in lieu of taxes
1% Utility tax

$ 15,551,114
39,549
141,387
15,732,050

$ 15,355,756
40,421
136,586
15,532,763

4,664,968
2,602,277
675,142
436
139,539
637,617
8,719,979

4,626,074
2,545,492
664,546
441
140,007
601,114
8,577,674

Less taxes levied on behalf of:
Provincial government - school taxes
Capital Regional District
Capital Regional Hospital District
Municipal Finance Authority
BC Assessment Authority
BC Transit Authority

Net taxes available for municipal purposes

9.

2013

$

7,012,071

$

6,955,089

Government transfers:
The Government transfers reported on the statement of operations and accumulated surplus are:
2014
Provincial Small Community Protection
Provincial Traffic Fine Revenue
Multi-use trail grants
Gas Tax Agreement Funds
Other
Total revenue

2013

$

241,538
60,819
305,427
2,142,273
28,056

$

243,051
60,589
95,699
36,987

$

2,778,113

$

436,326

10. Commitments and contingent liabilities:
In the normal course of business, the District enters into commitments for both capital and
operational expenses. These commitments have been budgeted for within the appropriate annual
financial plan and have been approved by Council.
19
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2014

10. Commitments and contingent liabilities (continued):
(a) Municipal Finance Authority debt reserve fund deposits:
Under borrowing arrangements with the MFA, the District is required to lodge security by
means of demand notes and interest-bearing cash deposits based on the amount of the
borrowing. As a condition of these borrowings, a portion of the debenture proceeds is
withheld by the MFA as a debt reserve fund. These deposits totaling $125,914 (2013 $122,367) are included in the District's financial assets as other assets and are held by the
MFA as security against the possibility of debt repayment default. If the debt is repaid
without default, the deposits are refunded to the District. At December 31, 2014 there were
contingent demand notes of $272,296 (2013 - $272,296) which are not included in the
financial statements of the District.
(b) The CRD debt, under the provision of the Local Government Act, is a direct, joint and
several liability of the CRD and each member municipality within the CRD, including the
District.
(c) The District is a shareholder and member of the Capital Regional Emergency Service
Telecommunications ("CREST") Incorporated whose services provide centralized
emergency communications, and related public safety information services to municipalities,
regional districts, the provincial and federal governments and their agencies, and emergency
service organizations throughout the Greater Victoria region and the Gulf Islands. Members'
obligations to share in funding ongoing operations and any additional costs relating to capital
assets are to be contributed pursuant to a Members' Agreement.
(d) As part of the normal course of business, the District has entered into various agreements
and contracts for services with periods ranging up to five years, including an agreement to
receive an allocation of facility usage at a cost of $237,000 per year extending to 2015.
These amounts will be recorded in the accounts in the period that the goods and services
are received.
(e) The District entered into a long-term contract with the Royal Canadian Mounted Police for
the provision of police services effective April 1, 2002. Under the terms of this contract, the
District is responsible for 70% of policing costs. The 2015 estimated cost of this contract is
$1,629,085.
(f)

The District has entered into an agreement with its sewer utility operator which expires on
September 30, 2016. Annual operating fees are estimated at $1,116,166 in 2015. Operating
fees for the 2014 - 2016 period will be determined based on budgets established from the
base operating fees in 2011 - 2012.
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2014

10. Commitments and contingent liabilities (continued):
(g) The District is a defendant in various lawsuits. The District records an accrual in respect of
legal claims that are likely to be successful and for which a liability amount is reasonably
determinable. The remaining claims, should they be successful as a result of litigation, will
be recorded when a liability is likely and determinable. The District is covered through an
independent insurance program against certain claims.
The District is self-insured for general liability claims through membership in the Municipal
Insurance Association of British Columbia, a reciprocal insurance exchange. Under this
program, member municipalities jointly share claims against any member in excess of their
deductible. Should the Association pay out claims in excess of premiums received, it is
possible that the District, along with the other participants, would be required to contribute
towards the deficit. The District's deductible is $10,000.

11. Financial plan data:
The financial plan data presented in these financial statements is based upon the 2014 operating
and capital financial plans approved by Council on April 28, 2014. The following reconciles the
approved financial plan to the figures reported in these financial statements.
Financial plan amount
Revenues:
Financial plan, as approved by Council
Less:
Transfers from other funds
Amortization offset
Total revenue

$ 17,863,373
(3,331,735)
(2,439,108)
12,092,530

Expenses:
Financial plan, as approved by Council
Less:
Capital expenditures
Transfer to other reserves
Debt principal payments
Total expenses
Annual surplus

17,863,373
(4,450,860)
(1,623,278)
(407,762)
11,381,473
$

711,057

The annual surplus above represents the planned results of operations prior to budgeted
transfers between reserve funds, debt repayments and capital expenditures.
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2014

12. Recast of comparative information:
Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to record an acquisition of land and the related
liability of $433,708 that occurred in the 2013 year. The impact of this adjustment is an increase
of both Tangible capital assets and Accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $433,708.

13. Segmented information:
The District is a diversified municipal organization that provides a wide range of services to its
citizens. For management reporting purposes, the District’s operations and activities are
organized and reported by service areas. Municipal services are provided by departments and
their activities are reported in these service areas. Service areas that have been separately
disclosed in the segmented information, along with the services they provide, are as follows:
(a) General Government:
General government is comprised of Corporate Services, Finance, Human Resources and
Information Technology. This segment also includes any other functions categorized as nondepartmental.
(b) Protective services:
Protective services is comprised of three different functions, including the District’s
emergency management, fire, and police services. The emergency management agency
prepares the District to be more prepared and able to respond to, recover from, and be
aware of, the devastating effects of a disaster or major catastrophic event that will impact the
community. The fire department is responsible for providing critical, life-saving services in
preventing or minimizing the loss of life and property from fire and natural or man-made
emergencies. Policing services are provided to the District under a long term agreement with
the Royal Canadian Mounted Police.
(c) Engineering:
The Engineering Department is responsible for the planning, design and construction of the
District’s infrastructure. This department, working closely with the Planning Department,
ensures that the District is developed in a fashion consistent with the Official Community
Plan while at the same time making sure that good engineering practices are maintained.
(d) Recreation and culture:
Recreation and culture is responsible for the construction and maintenance of the District’s
parks and greenspaces. This includes formal parks such as Ed Macgregor Park and the
Marine Boardwalk, local play parks and numerous natural areas such as Whiffin Spit Park.
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2014

13. Segmented information (continued):
(e) Planning and development:
Development work to achieve the District's community planning goals and economic
development through the official community plan, and other policy initiatives. This segment
also includes the municipal Geographic Information System function which provides
mapping and property information to District of Sooke staff and to the public.
(f)

Sewer:
The sewer protects the environment and human health from the impacts of liquid wastes
generated as a result of human occupation and development in the District.

Certain allocation methodologies have been employed in the preparation of the segmented
financial information. The General Fund reports on municipal services that are funded primarily
by taxation such as property taxes and other tax revenues. The accounting policies used in these
segments are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the financial statements as
disclosed in note 1.
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2014

13. Segmented information (continued):

General
Government

2014
Revenue:
Taxation
User charges
Government transfers
Investment income
Other

$

7,012,071
341,637
232,936
196,027
-

Protective
Services

$

356,258
302,357
-

Engineering

$

998,523
2,475,756
1,967,521

Recreation and
culture

$

Planning and
development

Sewer

- $
-

- $
97,105
-

2,201,024
-

Total

$

7,012,071
3,994,547
3,011,049
196,027
1,967,521

Total revenue

7,782,671

658,615

5,441,800

-

97,105

2,201,024

16,181,215

Expenses:
Salaries and wages
Contracted and general services
Supplies and materials
Interest and bank charges
Amortization

1,102,356
261,046
725,681
33,570
138,666

849,318
1,737,782
288,326
53,914
222,256

706,250
392,796
175,113
1,478,166

815,953
186,990

484,673
209,958
11,253
-

1,084,517
17,635
389,840
614,839

3,142,597
4,502,052
1,218,008
477,324
2,640,917

Total expenses

2,261,319

3,151,596

2,752,325

1,002,943

705,884

2,106,831

11,980,898

5,521,352

$ (2,492,981) $

2,689,475

$ (1,002,943) $

Annual surplus (deficit)

$

(608,779) $

94,193

$

4,200,317
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DISTRICT OF SOOKE
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2014

13. Segmented information (continued):

General
Government

2013
Revenue:
Taxation
User charges
Government transfers
Investment income
Other

$

Total revenue

6,955,089
350,480
341,645
160,940
7,808,154

Protective
Services

$

290,969
303,640
-

Engineering

$

594,609

849,400
36,986
2,022,768

Recreation and
culture

$

2,909,154

Planning and
development

Sewer

Total

- $
-

- $
76,214
-

2,197,360
-

$

6,955,089
3,764,423
682,271
160,940
2,022,768

-

76,214

2,197,360

13,585,491

Expenses:
Salaries and wages
Contracted and general services
Supplies and materials
Interest and bank charges
Amortization
Bad debt expense

1,107,637
179,152
733,488
8,028
137,939
7,360

692,012
1,710,415
281,654
66,806
236,091

743,572
332,570
97,036
1,445,536

812,350
179,671

476,361
236,600
15,112
-

1,080,939
17,314
389,840
598,796

3,019,582
4,352,026
1,144,604
464,674
2,598,033
7,360

Total expenses

2,173,604

2,986,978

2,618,714

992,021

728,073

2,086,889

11,586,279

5,634,550

$ (2,392,369) $

Annual surplus (deficit)

$

290,440

$

(992,021) $

(651,859) $

110,471

$

1,999,212
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DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
YEAR END REPORT

2014

Planning Department
Geographic Information Services
Subdivision and Development
Engineering Department
Building Department
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Planning Department Activities
Year End Report 2014
Development Activity
The following is a brief summary of planning applications in 2014:.

District of Sooke

ACTIVE
APPLICATIONS

2014

Rezoning & Public Hearing

5

Development Permit

8

Development Variance Permit

8

Board of Variance

2

Sign Permit

20

Temp. Commercial/Industrial

1

OCP Amendment

1

Total

45
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Project and Policies
Summarized below are initiatives taken on by the Planning Department during the year 2014.



Town Centre Design Guidelines

Staff prepared amendments to the Official
Community Plan to strengthen the policy
statements regarding a “West Coast” theme for the
Town Centre. Staff rewrote the Development
Permit Area (DPA) #1 for the Town Centre to
include more guidelines around architectural
details, storefront design and building materials.
Staff, with input from the Sooke Region Chamber
of Commerce and the Advisory Panel to the Mayor
on Arts and Beautification prepared a Town Centre
Design Handbook (Policy 8.9) outlining the
characteristics for a “West Coast” theme.
Sooke Laundromat & Car Wash



Amendments to Bylaw No. 408,
Sooke Town Centre Revitalization
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Amendments were made to allow Built Green
buildings in addition to LEED to be eligible for
property value tax exemptions, reduced building
permit fees and reduced development cost
charges in the Sooke Town Centre.
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Administrative Amendments to
Bylaw No. 600, Sooke Zoning Bylaw,
2013
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Amendments were made to rectify
administrative matters.
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Horseshoe Pitch

Staff worked with the Sooke Horseshoe Association to determine an appropriate location for a
horseshoe pitch within the District. Several options were presented to Council and a final approval
was granted to use the municipal lands located at 2250 Sooke River Road. The Sooke Horseshoe
Association must enter into an agreement with the District of Sooke for the approved location of the
Horseshoe Pitch at 2250 Sooke River Road, and a design must be provided by the group.

Sun River School Site
Staff was involved in the community engagement processes with Sooke sports organizations/clubs,
residents of Sun River and the community to present, review and receive comments regarding the
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proposed playing fields and related costs. The Planning department was also in charge of
completing the Sun River School site rezoning and OCP amendment. These bylaws went through
the public process and were approved by Council.

Development & Planning Advisory Committee Meetings (DPAC)
Staff attended meetings for up-dating the Capital Regional District (CRD) Regional Growth Strategy
(RGS). The RGS will be replaced by a Regional Sustainability Strategy (RSS).

Waste Transfer Station – Idlemore Road
Staff prepared reports and bylaws for Council to discuss the addition of a definition for “Waste
Transfer Station” and to discuss allowance “Waste Transfer Station” as Permitted Uses - Principal
Uses in the General Industrial (M2) zone. A public hearing was held. Council did not approve the
bylaws.

Building Permits – “Plan Checks”
Staff complete “plan checks” on many building permit applications to confirm that zoning regulations
are met and to determine if there are any development permits and/or planning related covenants in
place that would affect a building/building location.

File Closure and Archiving
There are over 1000 records (application files) in the planning department’s database with some
records, many of which are active development permits, being inherited files from Sooke’s
incorporation. To date, only a small percentage of these 1000 records have been digitally archived.
Development Services Clerks scan at least three historical files per week and it is standard practise
to scan new application files when completed.

Tempest Software
Reviewing and updating internal administrative processes in Tempest, specifically within the
configuration of the “Prospero” module, is an ongoing task within the Planning Department,
specifically by the Development Services Clerks. Ensuring that the internal administrative processes
are working efficiently is important because not only does this better service the needs of the
Development Services Department and provide support to other departments but it helps the
planning department to deliver better customer service.

Landscape Inspections
Before a Landscape Bond can be partially or fully released, the Planner visits the site in the company
of the project landscape architect or the person responsible for installing the landscaping to
determine if the landscaping meets the
approved
landscape
plan
in
the
Development Permit. Four landscape
inspections were completed this year:

6800 Grant Road (Clearbrook Estates)
2260 Maple Ave N (Trickle Creek Estates)
6750 West Coast Road (The Hope Centre)
6681 & 6691 Logan Lane
(Car Wash & Laundromat)

Sooke
HopeHope
Center
Figure
1 Sooke
Center
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MAJOR APPLICATIONS
The following complicated (Major) applications were reviewed by staff in 2014. The complexity of
these applications required considerable staff and client time to process and report on to LUEC and
Council.

Royal Bank Development Permit at
6639 Sooke Road
A one story, 325m2 (3500ft2) commercial
building will be utilized by Royal Bank of
Canada for business office space and
support services.

Harbourside Co-housing Development Permit at 6669 Horne Road
32 multi-family dwelling units will be developed for a seniors co-housing community.

6545 & 6547 Sooke Road
Staff is reviewing an application to rezone two properties adjacent to Brownsey Boulevard from
Manufactured Home Park (MHP) and General Commercial (C2) to a Comprehensive Development
(CD) zone.

Silver Spray Development Permit Amendment
A Development Permit was approved by Council for one to five buildings in the place of eight of the
original ninety five cottage buildings. These buildings will be twenty meters high and with density
bonusing, seven stories high.

Silver Spray
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Geographic Information Services
Year End Report 2014
The District of Sooke municipal Geographic Information System (GIS) is the framework for providing
mapping and property information to District of Sooke staff and to the public. In combination with
the Tempest Land Records database, the GIS software provides a geographic context for projects in
the Engineering, Planning, Building, Bylaw, Finance, and Administration departments.
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The ArcGIS Desktop software enables staff to
digitize features from survey plans, aerial
photography, or to import from external data
formats. Map documents are created by
combining the features in symbolized layers
that can be printed, published to a digital PDF
map, or displayed on an interactive web map.

Tr!ai!l

!

!

Managing the spatial data requires a
combination of desktop and server software.
The ArcGIS Desktop software is used to edit,
maintain, analyse, and publish the spatial
data on maps that can be printed or displayed
on web maps. The ArcGIS Server software
stores the spatial features in GIS databases
describing the location of properties,
structures, infrastructure, environmental
features,
zoning
and
administrative
boundaries, parks, watercourses, and aerial
photography.

The desktop software also allows the GIS
Parks, Trails and Amenities.
database to be related to other databases
(e.g., Tempest Land Records) to provide further analysis. Tempest contains records for lands
within the District of Sooke. Regular updates from BC Assessment (e.g., new subdivisions,
ownership, and property descriptions) are loaded into the Tempest system and related to property
data within the GIS. Each land record in Tempest has an identifier that relates to a property in the
GIS, allowing staff to select properties, determine attributes, provide analysis, and support public
inquiries and development applications such as Subdivision, Rezoning, and Building Permits.
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Infrastructure is digitized from survey plans
and engineering drawings and stored in the
GIS. Infrastructure is grouped into different
categories
(e.g.,
Roads,
Sidewalks,
Streetlights, Sanitary Sewer, Storm Drainage,
Park Trails, etc.). Summary reports are
created for each category to generate a listing
of features by type, location, condition, and
status for use in the annual infrastructure
inventory summaries.

!.

!.

By the end of 2014, the District of Sooke GIS
database contained a variety of spatial
features describing property ownership,
addressing, land features, environmental
features, and infrastructure.
This data
includes the locations of approximately 6600
parcels, 6500 addresses, 1800 survey plans,
and 183,000 infrastructure features.

Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure
The GIS data are also available for viewing
on a public interactive web map. The public map, available at the web address http://gis.sooke.ca ,
includes properties, addresses, zoning, roads, green spaces, watercourses, and aerial photography.

A variety of thematic maps including zoning maps, a zoning map booklet, and a “Sooke Street Map”
are available as downloadable PDFs from the District of Sooke website.
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Subdivision & Development
Year End Report 2014
Background
Subdivision and Development staff work on a variety of tasks in relation to land development
applications including subdivision application processing, land development application coordination
(building permit projects, design review and acceptance, construction monitoring, and
interdepartmental application review. Staff also assist the public with their application proposals as
well as questions about active developments. These tasks are in addition to day-to-day operations,
public enquiries, policy and procedure planning and bylaw reviews.
The following is a list of the application types administered by the land development section of the
Engineering Department:
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Subdivisions (land)
Staff are responsible for the administration of the subdivision application, design acceptance,
construction monitoring and final approval process for a variety of projects including
traditional fee simple, bare land strata, boundary adjustment, road dedication, leases over
three years, and phased strata plans. Subdivisions are approved by the Approving Officer.



Building Permit/Development
Subdivision and Development staff coordinate the involvement of the Planning and
Engineering Departments and their respective requirements for the construction of all
multi-family, commercial, residential, industrial or institutional building permit-related
projects. Staff also act as a liaison for external professionals and service providers involved
with the project.



Phased Strata (buildings)
When a developer proposes registering a building strata in phases, the approval of the
Approving Officer is required. Subdivision and development staff manage this process.



Strata Title Conversion
Staff are responsible for working with developers (often individual homeowners) on the
process to convert previously occupied dwellings to strata title ownership.



Long Term Lease
Staff process and approve applications for the lease of land exceeding a term of three years
as this is considered a subdivision of land.



Road Closure/Exchange
Staff work closely with the Corporate Services Department on the road closure/exchange
process which may see unused road dedication closed and possibly sold or exchanged.



Road Dedication (District-Initiated)
In order to ensure some future capital projects may proceed, the obtaining of road
dedications is often required. The review of road dedication proposals and processing of
applications is administered by subdivision and development staff.



Park Closures
Staff work closely with other departments in the processing of any park closure files. This
process includes liaising with land surveyors and legal representatives on behalf of the
municipality.

Highlights of 2014


Staff assisted in the completion of the new Subdivision and Development Standards Bylaw
(No. 404) adopted by Council on October 14, 2014. Staff also prepared new development
guides and updated the “Land Development” section of the District’s website with additional
information to assist applicants through the development process.
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Completion and registration of the
subdivision plan for the final
single family residential phase of
Woodland Creek Estates has
provided
an
improved
transportation link to and from
Ecole Poirier Elementary School.
This final link provides for the safe
movement of pedestrians with
sidewalks now linking from
Church
Road
and
along
Arranwood Drive through to the
school.



As part of ongoing subdivision
approvals,
completion
of
construction of the last segment
of Phillips Road through Sunriver
Estates has provided road
improvements for motorists as
well as additional sidewalks
which complete a safe pedestrian
link from the Sooke Arena
through to the end of the
development. Pedestrians can
then connect to the previously
constructed separated trail to the
north of Sunriver Estates.



The District of Sooke saw an
Elementary.
increase in the number of
applications granted approval in 2014. The Approving Officer approved 16 subdivisions, up
from 13 in 2013 and 9 in 2012. The 16 plans approved contain a total of 60 lots, a further
increase from 44 in 2013. Two large developments saw phases registered in 2014. Sunriver
Estates added 10 new lots, and Woodland Creek Estates added 27 new lots. Sunriver
Estates also continues to move forward with construction of new infrastructure that is
expected to lead to further lot registration in early 2015. In addition, many individual home
owners embarked on infill subdivisions in the community, taking their larger-sized lot and
splitting it into two new lots.



Registered 1,502 m2 in new park land dedication in Woodland Creek Estates. The final piece
of park dedication in the single family residential portion of the development provides for
connection to existing park and trail linkages as well as a linkage to a future development to
the north.



Assisted in coordinating the Engineering, Planning, Building, Fire and external agency
requirements for Harbourside Cohousing, a 32-unit multi-family development on Horne Road
prior to building permit issuance.

Completion of Arranwood Drive through to Poirier
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Assisted in the coordination of final Engineering, Planning and external agency requirements
for completion of the Hope Centre on West Coast Road.



Assisted in the coordination of Engineering and Planning requirements in advance of
issuance of a Building Permit for the new Royal Bank building on Sooke Road.



In order to improve efficiency and internal communication, staff created a new process for
acting as liaison
between all District
departments
in
order to ensure all
department
requirements are
addressed prior to
building
permit
issuance
on
complex
developments.
Subdivision
and
Development staff
coordinate
the
requirements
of
Planning,
Engineering, Fire,
Building
and
external agencies
to ensure those
requirements are
addressed prior to
a building permit
being issued. The
new process allows
for
improved
interdepartmental
communication as
well as assists the
developer and their
professionals
in
moving through the
process.



Noted an increase in the number of requests for pre-application meetings and development
information from potential developers and local property owners interested in
subdividing/developing.



Hosted a meeting with Sooke real estate agents to review the District’s website and online
mapping features to assist the Realtors in finding land and development related information
to assist their business.
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Continued review of outstanding deposits held in conjunction with Works and Services
Agreements and addressing the outstanding items associated with these deposits.



Updated Tempest subdivision/development tracking software to reflect new internal process
improvements.



Finalized archiving/digitizing of completed/expired subdivision files for off-site storage and
Tempest integration.

Corporate Strategic Plan Goals
In accordance with the guidance of the District of Sooke 2014-2015 Corporate Strategic Plan,
Strategic Priority #2 – Town Centre, which requires the District to “…strive towards making the town
centre a vibrant, clean and
well-maintained node, and
will
focus
initially
on
transportation
flow,
pedestrian
safety
improvements and meeting
appropriate
maintenance
standards”, the completion of
construction of Logan Lane
has provided an improved
transportation link in the
Town Centre as well as a
safe pedestrian connection
with the addition of a
sidewalk. Completion of
construction
of
a
Laundromat/café, car wash
and auto detailing facility
along the newly improved
road have added new
services to the Town Centre
Logan Lane provides new public link in Town Centre.
as well.
In accordance with Corporate Strategic Plan Strategic Priority #4 – Community Planning, which
requires that the District “…strive towards clarifying, simplifying and streamlining planning processes
and instruments which will respond to, enable and support investment and job growth in the
community”, significant progress was made on Council’s defined objective. After many months of
review with other members of the Engineering and Corporate Services Departments, Council was
presented with the final version of the Subdivision and Development Standards Bylaw (Bylaw No.
404) which was adopted October 14, 2014. The new bylaw provides a clearer and more streamlined
approach to development requirements within the District.
To complement the new Subdivision and Development Standards Bylaw, staff also made
improvements to the District’s website with more thorough information as well as printable guides to
assist developers and the public in general.
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As interest in the construction of larger multi-family, commercial and institutional projects increases
in the District, improvements to the Building Permit/Development process have been implemented
to assist in ensuring projects move forward in a consistently clear manner. As these projects involve
work from most District departments, staff have implemented a new system to ensure consistent
communication between all parties involved in the project (internal and external). This new process
will ensure that various departmental requirements are met as the project progresses.

District of Sooke

2015 Annual Report

Page 80 of 116

Application Statistics
Applications Approved January 1 ‐ December 31, 2014
#
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16

PLAN #
EPP32102
EPP42982
EPP45791
EPP43495
EPP35168
EPP40879
EPP37569
EPP29432
EPP38346
EPP36292
EPP34634
EPP36651
EPS1710
EPS2127
Pending
EPP41274

ADDRESS
PLAN TYPE
2174/2176 French Road S.
Fee Simple
6669 Horne Road
Fee Simple/Road Dedication
5330 Basinview Road
Line Adjustment
6516 Steeple Chase
Line Adjustment
Woodland Creek
Fee Simple
2350 Sooke River Road
Fee Simple
2050 Townsend
Fee Simple
7707 West Coast Rd.
Road Closure
7130 West Coast Rd.
Fee Simple
Sun River Estates
Fee Simple
2727 Phillips Road
Fee Simple
Sooke Hanger Drive
Fee Simple
1810 Connie Road
Strata Conversion
Bare Land Strata
2554 Sooke River Rd.
6695 Rhodonite Dr.
Fee Simple
2078 Kennedy
Fee Simple
Total Lots Approved January‐December 31, 2014
Total Lots Approved January‐December 31, 2013
Total Lots Approved January‐December 31, 2012
Total Lots Approved January‐December 31, 2011
Total Lots Approved January‐December 31, 2010

LOTS
2
1
0
0
27
3
2
0
2
10
2
2
2
3
2
2
60
44
55
172
113

Number of Plans Approved ‐ Yearly Summary
16

2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008

13
9
19
19
23
14

Phased Strata Plans Approved January 1 ‐ December 31, 2014
#
1

District of Sooke

ADDRESS
PLAN TYPE
UNITS
6800 Grant Road ‐ Phase 2
Phased Strata
3
Total Units Approved January‐December 31, 2014
3
Total Units Approved January‐December 31, 2013
13
Total Units Approved January‐December 31, 2012
12
Total Units Approved January‐December 31, 2011
12
Total Units Approved January‐December 31, 2010
34
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New Applications Received January 1 ‐ December 31, 2014
#
1
2
3
4
5
6
7

ADDRESS
2350 Sooke River Road
6695 Rhodonite Drive
5330 Basinview Heights
6516 Steeple Chase
6930 Blanchard Road
2166 Harbourview Road
3130 Sooke River Road

PLAN TYPE
Fee Simple
Fee Simple
Lot Line Adjustment
Lot Line Adjustment
Fee Simple
Fee Simple
Fee Simple
Total Lots Proposed

LOTS
3
2
0
0
70
2
2
79

New Applications Received ‐ Yearly Summary

District of Sooke

2014

7

2013
2012
2011
2010

11
20
13
20
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Engineering Department
Year End Report 2014
The Engineering Department is responsible for the implementation of the municipality’s
infrastructure master plans as well as the planning, design, construction and maintenance of
municipal infrastructure. This infrastructure includes roads (including street lighting and sidewalks),
sanitary sewer, rainwater management (drainage), transit stops, parks, natural areas, boulevards
and trails. The sanitary sewer collection and treatment system is owned by the District of Sooke and
is operated and maintained by EPCOR Water Services Inc.
The Engineering Department spearheads the advancement of environmental initiatives, climate
change initiatives, liquid waste management, spill response, watershed protection and water quality
protection.The department is also responsible for reviewing and providing input on all Subdivision,
Development Permit, Development Variance Permit, Road Closure and Rezoning applications.
Engineering staff are also involved in the review of some Building Permit applications which affect
municipal infrastructure and have potential environmental impacts.
Regular updates on ongoing projects in the municipality are posted on the District’s website at
http://sooke.ca/municipal-hall/whats-new/projects/ . This site details initiatives undertaken by the
District of Sooke, other government agencies, various development projects or volunteer projects
which may affect our residents.
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Corporate Strategic Plan Goals
Town Centre
In the District of Sooke 2014-2015 Corporate Strategic Plan, under Strategic Priority #2 – Town
Centre, Council identified objectives in the form of road and sidewalk projects. The following projects
were either completed in 2014 or are currently underway:

Location

Description

Timeline

1.

Church Road

Multi-use trail on west side of the road from
Throup Road to future connector

Completed

2.

Connector Road

Church Road to Otter Point Road

Completed

3.

Sidewalks / Town
Centre Improvements

Sidewalks along the north and south side of
Sooke Road from Church Road to Otter Point
Road

Planning and
design started in
2014

4.

Brownsey
Boulevard/Highway
14 Round-about

Property acquisitions and design and
construction

Underway
Summer 2015

5.

Connector Road

Phillips Road to Charters Road

Winter 2015

In accordance with the Corporate Strategic Plan, District staff worked on all of the above noted
projects and successfully completed the Church Road multi-use trail and the connector road, now
called Wadams Way from Church Road to Otter Point Road. Appropriate funding is in place under
the 2014-2018 Five Year Financial Plan to complete the roundabout on Highway 14 and the
connector between Phillips Road and Charters Road.

Community Planning
In the District of Sooke 2014-2015 Corporate Strategic Plan, under Strategic Priority #4 –
Community Planning, Council identified objectives in the form of master plan updates. The following
projects are anticipated for 2015:

1.

Location

Description

Timeline

Parks and Trails
Master Plan Update

Priority – Plans for John Phillips Memorial Park,
Off-Leash Dog Park and Sooke River Road Park

2015

Master Park Plan Updates

2015
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During 2014, significant progress was made on a number of capital projects.

Overlay showing the location of the multi–use trail along Church Road and the new Wadams Way

Church Road – Multi-use Trail
Construction of the multi-use trail along the
west side of Church Road began in late 2013
with final paving of the 3.0 m wide trail
completed in early 2014. ICBC provided a
grant for the installation of the pedestrian
crossing line painting and signage.

Multi-Use trail looking south on Church Road from
the Throup Road pedestrian crossing

Wadams Way – Connector Road from Church Road to Otter Point Road
The design and construction of the portion of the connector road from Church Road to Otter Point
road commenced in mid 2013 and included a multi-use trail along the south side as well as two new
sections of concrete sidewalk completing the pedestrian network along Townsend Road. The
construction of this portion of the connector was completed by the end of the summer of 2014 and
the grand opening took place on September 27, 2014.
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View east towards Church Road

View west towards Otter Point Road

The District received a grant from
the Province of British Columbia for
the construction of the multi use trail
and a plaque was unveiled at the
grand opening to commemorate this
partnership.
The
District
also
received
assistance from ICBC for the
installation of the 3-way flashing
beacon at the T intersection of Otter
Point Road and the connector; the
use of highly reflective signage for
the project; installing the 1.7m
concrete sidewalk along Townsend
Road and installing the crosswalk
flasher at the intersection with
Townsend Road.
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Highway 14 / Brownsey Boulevard Round-about and Town Centre Sidewalks
This project involves coordination with the design consultant, transportation consultant and MOTI.
The detailed design for the round-about is currently at 50% and under review by MOTI and District
staff. Discussions commenced in 2013 regarding the required property acquisitions which will need
to be finalized prior to design completion. Construction is anticipated to commence in the spring of
2015.
The District and MOTI signed a MOU to work together to deliver the roundabout in conjunction with
upgrades along Highway 14 initiated by MOTI from Church Road to Otter Point Road. Council had
already given direction to complete the design work for the sidewalks along Highway 14 from Church
Road to Otter Point Road which commenced in late 2014. Construction of the sidewalk would
commence pending budgets, with the section of sidewalk along the south side of the highway from
Otter Point Road to Townsend Road approved for construction in 2014. However, as design
approval was not achieved in time for construction this year this construction was delayed until 2015.
The partnership with MOTI is anticipated to provide greater budget efficiencies and therefore allow
the extents of the sidewalk construction to be increased.
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Connector – Phillips Road to Charters
Road
The detailed design work for this phase of
the Connector, from Phillips Road to
Charters Road was on hold during 2014.
The 50% design drawings were submitted
to the District for review in 2012 and will
require
further
consultation
with
neighboring property owners prior to
completion in 2015. Construction of this
portion of the connector was slated for
completion in late 2015 in the Corporate
Strategic Plan; however, the timing for
this will be budget dependent.
Staff is anticipating to be submitting a grant application in 2015 for this section of the connector.
Transit Stop Improvements
The Engineering Department continues to work with BC Transit to provide the District with some well
needed bus transit stop enhancements to improve rider safety and usage. New shelters were
constructed at stops on West Coast Road at Whiffin Spit Road and Sooke Road at Phillips Road.
Lighting will be installed in 2015 at these stops for improved public safety. The shelter at Sooke
Road at Village Food Market has been refurbished in conjunction with the high school art program
seeing renew plexiglass/art installed. Side panels to be installed in 2015 as a result of public feed
back.
Pineridge Park
In 2011, the design drawings were developed by a consultant for rainwater management and park
improvements based on input received at public hearings. These improvements were constructed
in 2014 and include the construction of approximately 160 meters of new path systems, a new nature
themed activity area within the park, adult fitness equipment, rain gardens, and headwalls and rock
lined swales.
SEAPARC Multi-use Trail
SEAPARC, the District of Sooke and the Juan de Fuca
Electoral Area partnered to obtain funds from the
CRD-Active Transportation Innovative Infrastructure
Funding Program to upgrade cycling facilities. The bike
park at SEAPARC has been upgraded and access via
Throup Road and SEAPARC have been improved thanks
to a $75,000 grant from the Capital Regional District and
funds from SEAPARC and the District of Sooke. New
construction of a pump track, improvements to the
existing Throup Road trail to make it more pedestrian
friendly and creating new trail connections to the park are
just a few of the items that have been completed to
date.
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Policy & Regulatory Initiatives
In the District of Sooke 2013-2014 Corporate Strategic Plan, under Strategic Priority #4 –
Community Planning, Council identified objectives to streamline, simplify, clarify service
responsiveness and business friendliness. To address this objective a review commenced on
several policies and bylaws.
To ensure staff remains approachable, staff continues to set aside time each Thursday, at minimum,
to meet with members of the public and/or developers/consultants to discuss potential applications
before an application is made or with existing applicants to review outstanding items and/or address
questions.

Subdivision and Development Standards Bylaw
The review of Bylaw 65 and all related policies to improve the language and clarity between
subdivision and development requirements was completed in 2014 with Council adoption of the
updated and re-organized Subdivision and Development Standards Bylaw 404, on October 14,
2014.

Corporate and Community Energy Emissions Plan (CEEP)
At Council direction the District completed a Corporate and Community Energy Emissions Plan
(CEEP). CEEP is a systematic way to analyze, rank and plan for future climate-related efforts
tailored to the unique responsibilities and influences of a local government and community.

DCC Bylaw
Work was slated to commence on the Sanitary Sewer component of the DCC Bylaw based on the
completed sanitary sewer model. A preliminary draft was completed by the consultant in 2013.
Anticipated projects are to be aligned with the budget process and need to be updated to reflect
actual DCC receipts. Unfortunately due to the other Bylaw updates undertaken in 2014 the
completion of the DCC Bylaw review is now anticipated in 2015.

Soil Removal and Deposit Bylaws
Work commenced to review and update the outdated CRD Soil Removal and Deposit bylaws
currently still in existence. It is proposed that both of these bylaws be combined into one
comprehensive bylaw which is currently under internal review prior to being brought to Council for
review. The completion of this review was delayed to 2015 due to the work involved with the
Subdivision and Development Standards Bylaw review.

Blasting Bylaw
To address a concern that the current Blasting Bylaw put too much responsibility on the District
regarding blasting regulations, a review of the bylaw was undertaken. Discussions commenced if it
should be a policy or bylaw and the bylaw was updated which is currently under internal review prior
to being brought to Council for review. The completion of this review was delayed to 2015 due to
the work involved with the Subdivision and Development Standards Bylaw review.
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Town Centre Servicing and Connectivity Review
With the potential development as well as the road right of way acquisitions by the District in the
Town Centre, staff commenced with the review of the connectivity and servicing in this area,
particularly, the sanitary sewer servicing and drainage. Discussions were also held with the CRD
Water Services regarding potable water supply and fire suppression for the Town Centre. This
review is anticipated to be completed in 2015.

Transportation Requests Review Matrix
Staff commenced discussions with a transportation consultant in 2014 to discuss the potential of
establishing a decision making methodology for various requests that are received and entered into
the Calls for Service. It is imperative that each request is reviewed through a consistent
methodology taking into account the appropriate guidelines and standards. Establishing a
consistent methodology will ensure that these requests are not left to completely subjective
judgement and thus manage the risks appropriately. This work will be completed in 2015.

Development Services
This task involves the review of developer’s consulting engineer’s civil design drawings for
conformance with District bylaws and policies and to confirm that they address the concerns of the
Preliminary Layout Assessment letter. Typically, there are at least three stages of drawing reviews,
preliminary, final and construction drawing review culminating in the issuance of permission to
construct once the drawings are accepted for construction. This process also includes the review of
the street light design drawings and the review of design drawings prepared by BC Hydro, Telus,
FortisBC, CRD Water and Shaw Cable designs for acceptability by the District prior to installation of
their systems. Consultation with the Approving Officer ensures all requirements are being addressed
and for identification of required easements, statutory rights of way and/or covenants. Staff also
coordinates with Canada Post with regard to mail box locations and configuration, as well as with BC
Hydro to arrange for activation of the streetlights.
Site conditions are reviewed prior to and during drawing review (as required). Environmental
impacts, such as watershed protection and water quality protection, are considered. In 2014, three
Riparian Areas Regulation Assessments were vetted during the redevelopment of properties and
new developments at time of subdivision or rezoning.
Once the design receives the Accepted for Construction, staff attends the on-site pre-construction
meeting with developer, consultant, contractor and utility representatives. The District continues to
have an on-site presence during construction as necessary with onsite reviews of works completed
when processing reductions to Letters of Credit.
Once the off-site works are completed, the developer’s consulting engineer submits as-constructed
drawings which are reviewed with the completed works onsite. At this time, all District bylaw
required forms and documentation is submitted and reviewed for completeness. The engineering
staff coordinates the completion of a final acceptance certificate (FAC), which serves to summarize
the completed works, shown in the as-constructed drawing(s) and off-site cost estimate for works to
be taken over by the District and entered into the Asset Management system.
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Staff also worked with CRD Integrated Water Services as they completed upgrades to their water
mains on:



Sooke Road Watermain crossing of Ayum Creek-Goodridge Road to Ludlow Road (64 m)
Blythwood Road from Parkland Road (564 m)

Blythwood Road CRD Watermain Upgrade works
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Operations and Maintenance
Highway Maintenance
Staff manages the Highway Maintenance Contract and works with the maintenance contractor to
implement the contract.


The highway maintenance contractor, Mainroad South Island Contracting Ltd., submits
weekly schedules to provide notice as to the anticipated work for the upcoming week as well
as weekly reports summarizing the work undertaken the week before. Both documents are
reviewed and posted weekly on the District Website. Spot checks are performed to confirm
the completed work.



All issues or requests for highway related maintenance received from Sooke residents are
entered into the District Calls for Service (CFS) system and directly issued to Mainroad for
action. This has been working very well with issues dealt with quickly and also tracked for
asset management purposes and to find long term solutions for re-occurring issues.



As a result of various signage requests from residents and requests for traffic calming, staff
continues to work on reviewing highway signage to ensure all signage is appropriately
documented and installed. When additional signage was required, staff prepared the traffic
orders to allow the sign installation and coordinated with the RCMP and District Bylaw
Officer.

Drainage and Culvert Replacement Program
Various drainage improvement projects are being assessed for feasibility and costs to determine the
appropriate plan of action and order of priority. Once the final requirements have been determined,
the District will be asking contractors to quote the works.
Drainage Projects Completed or In Progress


Grant Road West drainage pedestrian access
improvement project; the design and tender
documents for 180 meters of drainage
improvement work along the north side of Grant
Road between Maple Avenue and Guardian Road
is completed and ready to proceed to construction.
Timing for this project will be included in the 2015
Budget discussions.



During 2014, staff undertook extensive reviews of
drainage issues on Sooke Road in the Stickle Back
area.

Grant Road
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Onsite reviews of the ground water
exfiltration on the road pavement
fronting 2454 Mountain Heights
Drive. A final evaluation by a hydro
geologist was received in order to
determine how best to contain and
safely discharge the surface run-off
issue.
Groundwater remedial
construction work is anticipated to
commence in early 2015.

Mountain Heights Drive



The drainage route from Atherly Close to the outlet is under review. Staff conducted
onsite meetings with residents and is reviewing existing documentation to determine the
existing route and implications to the property owners. The intent is to review the
existing route, and potentially replace portions of it, to avoid existing structures and
obtain legal documentation with the property owners to ensure that the route is properly
maintained to avoid future issues.

 Major drainage rainwater system at the
2500 block of Brule Road needs realigning
away from private property prior to discharging
into Baker Creek. Anticipating construction in
2015, pending budget approval.

Brule Road
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Drainage issue at the 3100 block of Sooke River Road required evaluation of the rainwater
ponding on top of the roadway. Anticipating construction in 2015, pending budget approval.



Review of the boardwalk drainage and pavement on the south end of Murray Road: this area
needs realigning and rehabilitating for the deteriorating pavement and to redirect the
rainwater surface run-off away from private property and pedestrian access from the parking
area to the Marine Boardwalk. Due to the increase to the scope of work this work will
continue into 2015 with a detailed survey and design review. Construction will be pending
budget approval once the design is completed.
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 Slope
assessment
report
was
conducted at 1600 Connie Road by a
geotechnical engineering firm to help remediate
the embankment. Anticipating construction in
2015, pending budget approval.



Culvert issue at Dover Street, from the Lanark Road to the foreshore requires further review
and possible replacement of the steep, above ground, 750-mm diameter corrugated steel
pipe, as the invert of the pipe has corroded and is discharging rainwater into the neighboring
property. Anticipated construction in 2015, pending budget approval.
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Parks and Trails

Staff manages five Greenspace Maintenance Contracts and works with the maintenance
contractors to implement the contracts.


The ornamental areas, greenspaces, trails and washroom cleaning maintenance
contractors, provide maintenance to all public greenspaces and facilities. Spot checks are
performed to confirm the completed work.



All issues or requests for greenspace related maintenance received from Sooke residents
are entered into the District Calls for Service (CFS) system and directly issued to the
appropriate contractor for action. This has been working very well with issues dealt with
quickly and also tracked for asset management purposes and to find long term solutions for
re-occurring issues. The contractors are garnering many accolades from the public for their
performance and their high level of care to the parks and trails.



Continued the public input and preliminary design process for the proposed off-leash dog
park in the Ponds Park Corridor at 2276 Church Road. The process is expected to be
completed in 2015.
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Staff worked with contractors to improve Ella Park to enable
students from John Muir Elementary to access the park and
watercourse for use as an outdoor classroom.

Park benches installed in
John Phillips Memorial Park

Vandalism to public washrooms, locks, transit stops
and trees continues to cause concern.
Approximately $2,500 was spent this year to repair
damage and cover graffiti.

Vandalism in parks and public spaces cost
taxpayers 1,000’s of dollars annually.
\

Dumping of garbage and yard waste in
parks, transit stops and along trails
continues.

Dumping of yard waste and garbage continues to cause concern and have a financial and
aesthetic impact on the community.
Water conversation program for irrigation leak prevention to troubleshoot water leaks continues
at three parks that were high water consumers ($4,900 in leaks in 2012). Timers and
equipment have been retrofitted for water savings. This year the District saved 30% in water
costs.
Staff worked with the Communities in Bloom Committee and volunteers to prepare for
Communities in Bloom and attained “Five Blooms”.
Garbage cans, park benches, and dog bag dispensers were installed throughout the parks and
trails network.
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Environment
Staff continues to worked with Sooke Fire Rescue Service and Mainroad to mitigate the impact of
hazardous materials to the environment. Various chemical spills from trucks and marine vessels
occurred in 2014.

Hydraulic fluid spill on Acreman Place

Staff facilitated four shoreline clean-up events at local beaches through local volunteers with Great
Canadian Shoreline Clean-up.
Removals of invasive weeds that threaten ecosystem diversity in public parks (Scotch broom) and
agriculture (tansy ragwort) continues. The District works with other government agencies to
remove noxious vegetation (knotweed and hogweed) that pose a threat to watershed function and
drainage infrastructure.
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Sanitary Sewer

EPCOR Wastewater Treatment Plant

The Sooke wastewater collection and treatment system is owned by the District of Sooke and
operated by EPCOR Water Services Inc. The Sooke collection system and wastewater treatment
plant was commissioned in November 2005. The system services a core area of approximately
5,500 residents.
Engineering staff continues to be the contract manager and regularly meet with EPCOR to review
the agreement, ongoing operations and maintenance, as well as additional required work. This
also includes the review of the monthly operations reports and other required yearly reporting.
The monthly operations reports are submitted to the District and posted on the District of Sooke
website. These reports detail the system components, the operations issues dealt with throughout
the month, as well as the regulatory requirements.
During 2014 all of the air diffuser membranes were replaced in SBR #1 as part of an asset renewal
project. Air headers and diffusers disperse air into the basins for the treatment process and have
a manufacturer’s life expectancy of five years. This work was done on schedule and on budget
and included a confined space rescue exercise which was performed as part of an EPCOR safety
initiative. Digester #2 will have all diffuser membranes replaced in the next year to ensure
equipment is properly maintained and treatment quality continues to be excellent.
The Wastewater Treatment Plant Outfall Inspection was completed in 2013 and the report confirmed
all were in good condition. However, it was reported that a large rock was found resting on the pipe
and some fishing gear was found fouled on the pipe. In 2014 commercial divers were hired to
conduct the debris removal and issued a report detailing that the outfall was free of any debris that
could potentially damage the pipe.
EPCOR continued to meet or exceed the target values of the Performance Measures for 2014.
There were no releases, no lost time accidents, effluent quality was well within regulations, and there
were numerous safety activities and quality assurance/quality control activities.
In order to finalize the required Operational Certificate (OC) for the waste water treatment plant, staff
is working on final submissions to the Ministry for approval of the OC. The Municipal Wastewater
Regulation requires operational certificates for wastewater treatment plants as they set municipal
effluent quality standards and requirements.
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Sewer Connections / SSA Expansions
Receive requests for expansion of the Sewer Specified Area and coordinate with developers,
consulting engineers, public, EPCOR and Stantec. Prepare report to Council and assist with the
preparation of bylaws as required. If Council approves, follow up with petitioner to connect property
and notify appropriate internal departments for records update.


No sewer specified area inclusion petitions were received in 2014.

Coordination of sanitary serviceability review completion and associated invoicing. Review the
results of the review and track any upgrades required to the sewer system. Advise developer of
applicable work required for development to proceed.


No sanitary serviceability reviews were received in 2014.

Calls for Service and Follow up
The Engineering Department received a total of 316 new calls for service relating to public
complaints, suggestions and requests. These included potholes, blasting, dust, vandalism,
garbage, vegetation within highway rights of way, maintenance of boulevards, drainage, street
lighting (either not working or asking for more), signage (either damaged, vandalized or asking for
additional signage), pavement marking (eradication) and sanitary sewer issues during 2014 and is
continuing to work on 59 active calls for service received in previous years.
Parks and Environmental Services received 216 new calls for service relating to the environment,
parks, trails, boulevard maintenance, vandalism, hazardous trees, hazardous materials spills,
garbage and washrooms. An additional 34 calls for service are in progress.
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Each call is entered into the Tempest system, assigned and tracked. All calls are investigated and
action is taken as necessary. This includes coordination with the RCMP (when required) and
coordination with the contractors (budget pending) for quotes and onsite reviews during the
installation. If the caller requests a call back that will also be noted and followed up on. Once an
issue/concern has been reviewed and addressed, the call is completed and closed.
As staff is not able to regularly drive around and review all of the infrastructure, staff depends mostly
on residents to contact the department with their observations and any call is very much appreciated.
For example, residents are in a much better position to notice if a street light is not functioning or a
new light is perhaps required as they use the roads during the evening hours. When a resident
contacts the department with a streetlight repair request it is entered into CFS, which is then
forwarded to the contractor for the repair. The ornamental street lights are owned by the District
and therefore maintained by the District. The davit lights on power poles remain the responsibility
of BC Hydro so any CFS regarding a davit light is coordinated directly with BC Hydro.
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Permits
The Engineering Department issues Highway Use Permits (for works within the road right of way and
special events), Park Use Permits (for special events), Soil Removal permit, Soil Deposit permit and
Blasting permits. Each permit submission requires onsite review, often before the permit is issued,
and also during the works/event and once the work/event is completed to ensure that the works were
completed as detailed and without damage to public property.

Permit Type

No. of Permits
Issued
2013
10
1
2
3
16

No. of Permits
Issued
2014
9
1
6
4
20

No. of Permits
Issued
2013
6

No. of Permits
Issued
2014
3

20

11

1

2

CRD Water
BC Hydro
Driveway Access for Building
Permits

7
10
51

2
1
58

Events
Frontage
Other
TOTAL

9
17
3
124

8
15
4
104

TOTAL PERMITS ISSUED

130

124

Park Use Permit
Blasting
Soil Removal
Soil Deposit
TOTAL
Highway Use Permits

Telus
Fortis
Shaw Cable

The Engineering Department processed an additional 37 requests (an increase from 28 in 2013)
for information for utility locates during the year 2014 which included providing appropriate
infrastructure drawings and maps:
CRD Water
Fortis BC
BC Hydro
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Building Department
Year End Report 2014
The Building Department is responsible for issuing building and plumbing permits, performing site
inspections, reviewing onsite infrastructure and approving residential, commercial, and industrial
construction within the Municipality.
Building Inspectors process applications and review building plans to ensure compliance with the
2012 BC Building Code, municipal bylaws, regulations and polices. Site inspections are
performed at various stages of construction to determine that the conditions set out in the building
permit have been satisfied. Building Inspectors provide interpretation of the BC Building Code and
bylaw requirements, and discuss appropriate construction methods. A final inspection is required
before an occupancy permit can be issued.
On December 19, 2014, there was a change to the 2012 BC Building Code. New energy efficiency
and ventilation requirements came into effect for residential dwelling units, such as houses,
apartments and secondary suites. All building applications received by December 18, 2014 will be
processed under the current 2012 BC Building Code. All building permits applied for on or after
December 19th will be reviewed for compliance to the new energy efficiency and ventilation
requirements. Our building inspection staff have been working in conjunction with other
municipalities on a collaborative way to approach this change.
In 2014, the Building Department issued a total of 205 permits. This is a 20% increase from 2013
and had a 15% increase in revenue. Residential building permits saw a significant increase of 32%.
The 48 Hour Building Permit application process received 38 applications in 2014, 25 of which were in
the Phillips Road and Riverstone Drive areas. This service provided applicants, who have all supporting
documentation to begin construction, two working days after the building permit application has been
received.
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The Sooke Hope Centre was completed October 2, 2014. Located at 6750 West Coast Road,
this brand new four storey building provides a total of 25 affordable rental units and houses
businesses such as St. Vincent De Paul Thrift Store, Ahimsa Yoga and Wellness, Sooke
Therapeutic Yoga Society and Standing Cedars Acupuncture Clinic.
The Society of Saint Vincent de Paul of Vancouver Island and the M’akola Group of Societies have
partnered to provide affordable housing for Aboriginal and non-Aboriginal homeless singles in
Sooke. This project was the first of its kind in the Province.

Hope Centre

A permit was issued on December 4, 2014 for the 32 unit Harbourside Senior Co-Housing project
at 6669 Horne Road. The purpose of co-housing is to build a neighbourhood for seniors that is
affordable, environmentally friendly, and socially/culturally supportive. In this model, the future
residents participate in the planning, design and development of the community so that it directly
responds to their needs. The plan is to construct apartment and duplex style homes with common
amenities to support interaction among neighbours and aging in place.

Harbourside Senior Co-Housing

On October 15, 2014, a permit was issued for construction of the new Royal Bank building at 6639
Sooke Road. They are currently operating out of a temporary location on Goodmere Road at the
corner of Sooke Road and Church Road.
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The following summary outlines permit activity in the Building Department for 2014:
2013
96

2014
127

# of Residential permits issued
(Single & Multi Family)
# of Other permits combined
74
78
(i.e.: Commercial, Industrial, Demolition Oil Tank, Plumbing, Sewer,
Additional Suite, Renovation, Woodstove, Additions, Decks)
Total Number of Permits Issued
170
205
Total New Units created
130
165
Total Revenue Received
$276,532.93 $318,342.96
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Fire Department
2014 Year End Report
From the Office of the Fire Chief
For members of the Sooke Fire Rescue Department, 2014 will go down as a year in
which extraordinary challenges were met with courage, dedication and an unmatched
commitment to protect life and property. A multitude of major emergency calls again
demonstrated that the firefighters in our community are among the best. As Fire Chief
and Incident Commander at many of these events, I was often awestruck at the caliber
and quality of work that these extraordinary people demonstrate on a regular basis.
Only through the thousands of hours of training and preparedness were these personnel
able to keep these emergencies from becoming full fledged disaster situations. The
majority of these people volunteer to perform this service, including our career
firefighters who often stay on long past their shifts showing their love of the job and their
community.
Moving into 2015 and years beyond, there will be new challenges and obstacles to
overcome. Diminishing number of volunteers, increase in emergency calls, working
within budgets and addressing the requirements of new Provincial regulations are just a
few items that will all play into the future needs of the Fire service.
Council introduced the volunteer firefighter recruitment and retention program that
recognizes the volunteer work through an annual stipend based on attendance. To
improve response times, we are working with our mutual aid partners to establish
automatic aid agreements in which multiple departments will be called out
simultaneously for all structure fires. Other department efficiencies such as shared or
joint purchases to support cost saving measures are also being investigated, all the
while ensuring that firefighters are adequately trained and equipped to perform their
jobs.
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Special mention must also be given to a group of dedicated volunteers who are working
diligently at fundraising to enable them to travel to Panama for the second time where
they will provide training and assistance to local firefighters. As part of the effort, and
with assistance from the local photography club, a very professional fire department
calendar was put together and received great
reviews from everyone.
I look forward to working with the members of
the fire department, emergency program and
our mutual aid partners as we share ideas and
work cooperatively together to find solutions to
issues that challenge us.
Steven Sorensen
Fire Chief

Fire Department Operations
The Sooke Fire Rescue Service faced an extraordinary variety of major incidents this
past year. It was extremely busy for members, with the department attending over 600
emergency responses and another 77 non emergency calls such as beach fires, smoke
sightings, assist police and minor first aid incidents. Another 102 responses were to
burning complaints. Several of the emergency calls exceeded the capabilities of the fire
department and additional assistance was required from other local fire departments. As
is common practice under mutual aid agreements, Sooke firefighters were able to return
the favour when they responded to major incidents in other jurisdictions when those
communities were overwhelmed by the size or type of call. Due to the complexity of
some of these incidents and the potential risk to the community, the activation of the
Sooke Emergency Program and the Emergency Operations Centre (EOC) did occur. In
two circumstances, several homes were evacuated due to the threat of rapidly spreading
wildfires, and in one incident, the Emergency Reception Centre was opened to take care
of evacuees.
Some of the more dramatic events of 2014 included:
•
•
•

•
•

February 6 –assist Otter Point Fire Department at a fully involved structure fire on
West Coast Road.
February 6 -- assist East Sooke for structure fire.
February 14 – Sooke along with mutual aid from Otter Point, East Sooke, Shirley
and Metchosin FDs fought a major fire on West Coast Road involving several
boats and a large warehouse structure.
April 22 – Sooke along with members of the Otter Point FD contained a large
barn fire
May 21 – A very difficult and complex rope rescue operation took place at the
Sooke Potholes. Sooke firefighters were assisted by Metchosin and Langford
firefighters as well as the JdF Search and Rescue members.
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•
•
•

•

•

•

•
•

June 15 – a difficult to reach brush fire was contained in the hills above Cedar
Park Place.
July 12 – another difficult rescue at the Sooke
Potholes.
July 28 – an observant passerby noticed smoke
near the YMCA Camp. Sooke and Metchosin
firefighters were able to get the small brush fire
under control very quickly.
July 31 – crews responded to a fully involved house
fire. The fire spread very quickly, causing several
spot fires in surrounding forests. Several homes
were evacuated as crews from Sooke, East Sooke,
Otter Point, Metchosin, Shirley and Langford FDs
along with the BC Forest Service fought to keep the
fire under control.
September 11 – a major structure fire on the Sooke/Otter Point border occurred
just before lunch time. The wind driven fire spread quickly to neighbouring
properties resulting in the rapid evacuation of homes in the area. This event
required the largest fire department response in the history of this region with a
total of eight municipal or regional fire departments responding along with the BC
Forest Service. The fire required the activation of the Sooke and CRD
Emergency Operations Centre’s as well as the Sooke Emergency Reception
Centre to take in evacuees.
September 12 – many of the same fire departments involved in the previous
day’s fire were called in to assist the Metchosin Fire Department at a major forest
fire on Blinkhorn Mtn. Sooke crews remained on scene assisting for an
additional three days.
September 26– Sooke, with the assistance of Otter Point and Metchosin fire
departments, responded to a fast moving fire and saved the duplex.
November 1 – Sooke and Metchosin firefighters were called in to assist East
Sooke FD at a tragic house fire.

Fire Department Personnel
The volunteer membership in the Sooke Fire Rescue Department is constantly changing
and evolving. In 2014, membership ranged from a low of only 33 personnel in
suppression (this includes the five career staff) to a high of 41 members. This constant
fluctuation requires a never ending and ongoing process of attracting, recruiting, training
and retaining new volunteers at all times. This past year, the recruiting budget was
increased to allow the fire department to build a marketing plan complete with a
corporate logo and “Community Hero” tag line in an effort to using branding as a tool in
promoting interest in the fire department. A variety of community events featured the
logo and several give away items are now kept in stock that can be used at these
various shows to continue the promotional activities. This included new banners, fridge
magnets, re-useable grocery bags, coffee cups and travel mugs. Additional products
may be acquired once a full evaluation of the program is completed.
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As of December 31, 2014, the Sooke Fire Rescue Service had the following
membership:
Career Staff

5.6 persons: Fire Chief,
Deputy Chief (Prevention),
Assistant Chief (Training), 2
firefighters and a 0.6 clerical
support person.

Volunteer Firefighters:

34 Members: 2 Captains,
4 Lieutenants, 20
Firefighters, 2
Driver/Operators and 6
Probationary Firefighters

Volunteer Support Services: 10 Members: 1
Assistant Chief, 6 fire and
life safety educators, 1 fire
inspector, and 1 radio
operator. (400 volunteer
hours)

The new Sooke Firefighter
Recruitment Logo

Emergency Social Services: 24 Volunteers and 2 volunteer Ham Radio Operators.
(786.5 hrs volunteer hours)
TOTAL Membership:

39 Fire Suppression + 1 part time clerk + 10 Support
Service + 29 ESS Members For a total of 79. This makes
Sooke Fire Rescue Service one of the largest employers’
within the District of Sooke.

Emergency personnel perform a
complex high angle rescue to
recover an injured climber at
Sooke Potholes
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Fire Prevention & Public Education
The Fire Prevention Division
Over 400 hours was devoted to community fire and life safety prevention programs in
2014, with the majority of this effort through volunteer time. The department’s volunteer
fire inspector provided an additional 184 hours assisting the Deputy Chief with business
inspection duties.
Members of the fire department again volunteered at many community events and
spearheaded a major fundraising event for the Sooke Food Bank. The fire department
formed an integral part in organizing the annual Christmas Food Drive. Firefighters and
friends collected in excess of $100,000.00 in cash, food and toys for the Sooke
Christmas Bureau. This again goes to show the incredible generosity of the residents of
Sooke and the dedication of the fire department to the community.

INSPECTION / INVESTIGATION TEN YEAR COMPARISON
Activity
Fire Investigations

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

18

16

15

16

26

34

30

27

30

51

26

Daycare/ School

13

9

20

8

19

13

19

13

13

13

12

Multi-Family

10

12

16

8

8

6

6

25

21

22

29

Business

36

83

106

87

50

103

126

144

160

161

156

Public Assembly

11

17

35

34

35

19

39

38

48

49

41

38

56

54

40

8

22

12

9

Small Home Based
Business
Miscellaneous

34
2

Re-Inspection

5

Oil Furnace or Oil Tank

1

49

6

0

0

8

6

10

2

7

10

31

53

79

75

62

40

45

32

39

31

10

26

12

8

13

22

Class A Burning Permit
Inspection
Construction Site
Inspection
Total Inspections

12

7

12

12

N/A

1

18

23

16

12

13

16

9

9

43

27

15

27

44

12

28

20

161

189

246

233

177

219

348

398

435

439 404

Plan Reviews

3

3

22

27

13

8

15

8

7

7

8

Subdivision / Rezoning
Referrals
Fire Safety Plan Reviews
TOTAL ALL

30

39

29

62

31

33

51

36

58

47

39

297

322

221

260

6
448

4
504

3

231

3
417

5

194
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Fire Investigation:
Several complex fire investigations were undertaken this year to determine cause and
origin of the fire as per the requirements of the Office of the Fire Commissioner. The
most time consuming investigation involved the July 31st fire on Sooke Road.
This fire at Sooke Elementary School was deemed
accidental resulting from an electrical short
circuit in this light fixture. Fortunately the fire
was noticed while it was still small and contained.
Quick work by firefighters prevented its spread to
the remainder of the school.

Fire Department Training
Forty volunteer members of the Sooke Fire Rescue Department, both suppression crews
and support service members participated in excess of 7000 hours of training and
course instruction in 2014. Half of this training occurred during regular Thursday night
sessions with the other half being conducted on weekends or other evenings. Three of
the volunteer firefighters contributed over 200 hours each and another eight members
exceeded 150 hours each. Of the total hours, 25% was done by the five career staff
members, primarily as instructors for various programs throughout the year. Providing in
house courses is more economical than sending members to the Justice Institute of BC
programs in Victoria or the lower Mainland.
With the Council approved volunteer firefighter stipend program, a total of 21 members
(52.5%) qualified for the $500.00 training incentive award while 19 (47.5%) did not meet
the eligibility criteria. Only two volunteers did not receive any compensation for
emergency call attendance. Based on this, the range of payout for 2014 will be a low of
$0.00 to a high of $989.16.
Sooke Firefighters are trained to the NFPA 1001 requirements for Firefighter Level 1 and
Level 2.
Hazardous Materials: There are currently two career members and two volunteer
members on the CRD Hazardous Materials Emergency Response Team, all trained to
the Technician Level. While the Fire Chief, Deputy Chief and Assistant Chief are also
Technicians, they are currently not part of the CRD program due to the time
commitments involved in maintaining their status.
Technical Rescue covers tasks such as rope rescue and confined space rescue. Rope
rescue can involve high angle and low slope type situations and confined space involves
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anything, (usually underground) in which there is limited access situations. This could
be a sewer lift station, an underground hydro vault or below deck on a boat.
The joint hosting of the second annual
Juan de Fuca Regional Fire Training
Weekend took place in September. In
cooperation with the Justice Institute of
BC, the fire departments of Sooke,
East Sooke, Otter Point and Metchosin
banded together to provide a variety of
educational opportunities to those
firefighters in attendance. Programs
varied from one to four days in length.
With well over 100 firefighters
participating from departments all over
Vancouver Island, the Justice Institute
was very pleased with the results noting that this was still the most successful training
weekend they are part of.
The Otter Point Fire Department Live Fire Training Centre was heavily utilized again this
year. This facility provides the department the continued opportunity to conduct training
in basic and advanced fire fighting skills and drills, conduct firefighter self rescue
techniques and also rapid intervention team procedures. The live fire training scenarios
continue to be the most popular form of training for the members.

Firefighters train on the car fire
simulator at the Otter Point Fire
Training Facility
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Apparatus and Equipment
As Sooke’s apparatus fleet continues to age, the expenses for repair and maintenance
costs have begun to rise. These units continue to experience demanding service in their
roles as emergency response units.
There were some significant changes within the fleet this year including.
•

•

The disposal of the heavy rescue truck – Unit 207. With the departure of this
truck, all of the rescue gear has been placed on various apparatus or stored in
the station if room could not be found on a truck.
The used 1999 ambulance that was located at the Sunriver Muster Station was
taken out of service and sold. It has been replaced with a van purchased from
the Langford Fire Department.
A new commercial turnout gear washing and
extraction machine was installed into Station
1 late in 2014. This important piece of
equipment is able to clean four complete sets
of firefighter turnout gear at any one time and
provides a much quicker and more
comprehensive wash and rinse process than
the residential washing machine previously
used. The new installation complies with the
requirements set forth by Worksafe BC to
deal with any asbestos contamination on
firefighter’s personal protective gear.

Firefighters undergo a quick field
decontamination procedure following
extinguishment of a structure fire in
which the building contained asbestos.
The gear is then bagged for a more
thorough cleaning back at the station.
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Emergency Incidents and Response

Non
emergency Other
10%
2%
Alarms
6%

MVA’s & Rescue took 10%
of all calls while fires
account for 7% of the total.
It has been noted there
has been a small, but
upward trend in the
number fires over the past
ten years.

SilverSpray
0%

Fires - All types
7%

Incident Type

Medical calls still account
for the majority of
emergency responses in
Sooke as it does with most
fire departments.

MVA & Rescue
10%

Complaints
13%
Medical Aid
48%

Mutual Aid
2%
Sunriver

As expected, the majority of
emergency incidents occur within
the Station 1 area as most of the
population is here. Station 2’s
area received 28% of the calls in
2014. This area is responsible for
a majority of the motor vehicle
collisions. 6% of calls came from
the Sunriver area, 2% of calls
were for mutual aid and only 1 call
occurred in the Silver Spray
neighbourhood.

6%

Station 2
28%

Haz Mat /
Condition
4%

Station 1
64%

Incident distribution

Incidents - Day vs Night - 2014
61% of all calls attended
by the Sooke Fire Rescue
Department occurred
between the hours of 6:00
am and 6:00 pm in 2014.
Unfortunately, this when
the least number of
volunteers are available.

Day

Night

39%
61%
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Sooke Emergency Program –
Emergency Social Services (ESS)
Emergency Operations Centre (EOC)
This year was once again a very busy year for the volunteers of the Sooke Emergency
Program. There are currently 24 active members (5 new members and 5 other members
left for various reasons) who this year were able to amass a total of 786.5 volunteer
hours. These hours reflect the total from monthly meetings, ESS courses, special
presentations, workshops and supporting local Community events throughout the year.
Sooke also participated in the Great BC Shake out (4th year in a row), with all 6 of our
schools taking part. Provincially, over 743,000 participants from across British Columbia
took part in this this years event which resulted in a new record being set.
The Sooke Emergency Program continued with the acquisition of emergency supplies.
This will continue through 2015 with a goal to acquire additional items and to investigate
the possibility of a securing a second storage site on the east side of the Sooke River.
The Sooke ESS team had their first activation, in which all the training and preparation
were put to the test. This occurred when a major interface fire forced the evacuation of
many homes. A Reception Centre was set up at the Sooke Community Hall for the
evacuees. Volunteers assisted in the set up of the Sooke EOC and ensured that any
support needed at the emergency scene was quickly assessed and dispatched as the
calls for assistance came in.
Goals for 2015 will focus on recruitment, retention, training, continued cooperation with
JDF ESS, increasing supplies and researching alternative locations for the required
emergency facilities and supplies in Sooke.
The Sooke Emergency Program will be hosting the Vancouver Island Emergency
Preparedness Conference in the spring of 2015. A committee was organized and has
been very busy, organizing the web site, advertising, obtaining speakers, sponsors, door
and draw prizes, accommodations and rates to name a few of the tasks. The busy time
for the Conference Committee is early in 2015 as they gear up to welcome 300
delegates in April 2015.
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Declaration and Identification of Disqualified Council Members
Nothing to report.

Community Participation in Your Local Government
Local government provides many opportunities for its citizens to participate in the planning
and management of their own community. A citizen may:


Run for Mayor or Councillor



Vote at general elections or public approval opportunities



Participate in public consultations or hearings



Attend Council or Committee/Commission meetings



Volunteer for a Committee or Commission

As a citizen of the District of Sooke, you may at any time make your views known. It is usually
best to begin with contacting the appropriate municipal department or staff person, but citizens may also present their views to Council in writing or in person at a Council meeting.
In order to appear before Council as a delegation at a Council Meeting, you need to submit a
written request to the Corporate Officer by 4:30 pm on the Wednesday before the scheduled
Council Meeting. The request can either be by way of a form (available on the District website)
or a separate letter that you have written which contains the information requested on this
form. You can submit your request in person, by email at info@sooke.caby mail or by fax at
250-642-0541.
If you wish to make a presentation to Council or let Council know how you feel about an issue,
please contact the Corporate Officer.
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